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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

Xu Haidong ##@ X
Chairman */Z

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”)
of China Electronics Huada Technology Company
Limited (the “Company”), | hereby report that,
for the year 2023, the Company together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) achieved a sales revenue of
HK$3,019.1 million, representing an increase of 21.6%
when comparing with last year, and earned a profit
attributable to the shareholders of the Company of
HK$686.4 million, representing an increase of 29.2%
when comparing with last year. Basic earnings per
share was HK33.82 cents.

AANZERERPBHEFEARFER2R ([AQ
ANEZTe([EEL])EM  2023F AR A RE
EBAR ([AEE]) BERHEEWA3,019.18 8%
T BEF FF21.6%  BEBMNAD G F
B686. 4B EBIL  WMEF EF29.2%  BFREA
B A&33.82781l -
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The Board recommends the payment of a dividend of
HK10.5 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: HK8.0 cents). Subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, the dividend will be distributed on or
before 31 July 2024.

Looking ahead, global demand for smart cards will
continue to be in a downward cycle. 2024 will bring
challenges to the Group’s operations as competition
in the industry intensifies and the selling prices of
smart cards and secure element chip products will
be on a declining trend. The Group will closely
monitor application trend changes in domestic and
international markets and flexibly adjust production
and sales strategies, so as to provide more diverse and
competitive products to better satisfy customers’ needs.
The Group will also continue to consolidate its leading
position in the smart cards sector and strengthen the
secure element chips business expansion.

On the other hand, leveraging years of accumulated
expertise in smart cards and secure element chips design
and application technology, the Group will gradually
strengthen its research and development in the sector of
secure element chips for the Internet of Things and the
intelligent connected vehicles with a market-orientated
approach, taking into account the development pace
of the Internet of Things and the intelligent connected
vehicles applications, and optimise product mix with
technological innovation to strive to meet the needs of
customers, thereby creating a sustainable future.

Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

In January 2024, Ms. Luo Wenjing resigned as an
executive director of the Company. On behalf of the
Board, | would like to thank Ms. Luo for her invaluable
contributions during her tenure of service.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank
all staff members for their contributions and tireless
efforts in the past year, and express our most sincere
gratitude to our shareholders and business partners for
their longstanding trust and support.

Xu Haidong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024

R2024F 18  BMXBRETHEIEARARRRITE
B RAABRRESTSR OB LN ERE
H2EEEE -

RE& AABRKEFERLRARAIZEBRFAE
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REAEBRHFEHMURNECEIFRARHAE
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Management'Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW
Results overview

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 amounted to HK$3,019.1 million, representing
an increase of 21.6% when comparing with last year.
Profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to HK$686.4 million, representing an increase of
29.2% when comparing with last year. The basic
earnings per share was HK33.82 cents (2022: HK26.18
cents).

Integrated circuits design operation

The Group’s integrated circuits design operation
comprises the design of smart cards and secure element
chips and the development of application system.
Currently, the Group’s products are mainly used in the
sectors of identity authentication, financial payment,
government utilities, telecommunications, Internet of
Things and intelligent connected vehicles. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Group obtained 30 new
patents, registered 3 new software copyrights and 2
new integrated circuits layout designs.

In 2023, the overall global market demand for smart
cards and secure element chips remained stable, while
domestic integrated circuits production capacity was
sufficient, leading to intensified market competition.
Faced with competitive pressure and challenges, the
Group flexibly adjusted production and sales strategies,
actively explored potential markets, comprehensively
improved management efficiency and operational
effectiveness, and maintained continuous growth in
business performance. During the year, the promotion
of bank card chips in overseas markets was effective
and the sales volume of bank card chips increased
when comparing with last year; the sales volume of
SIM card chips was similar to that of last year; the sales
volume of the third-generation social security card
chips decreased when comparing with last year due to
the decline in market demand; and the sales volume
of identity authentication products decreased slightly
when comparing with last year. For the year ended
31 December 2023, the Group’s total sales volume
increased by 6.9% when comparing with last year.

BEEEFNWRE DM

Ko
E R

NEBEB E2023F12A31BIEFEZ2KRAAE
30191888 REFLEFA21.6% - FEBRA
NREEREE LT R84 BB T BEF L
F29.2% - BREARZEF| £33.8281l (20224 :
26.18%81l) -

EREBRRTAER

AEBZEKRERRAEBRETERRLET
R z&RetRERRLGHRE - BAT - AERENEM
TEEBESDEN  ERXMN BERIAEER -
BE VHANEREMEEMAAE - 8122023
FI12A31BLLFE - REEFIE0REN - #E
FC3TE R 35 1 N ¥ st 278 52 K B8 BE A B 2R &

2023FERREERRLE LA MBEBREFTKE
E-BEASKEREELETE  MGHEFINE - ®
HBEFEREOEKSE  AEBPEABEEREE
RE BEABEETS  2EEASEREM
EENE  RELEEEFEER -FAEHFK
MAERIITSNEERGSKY - /RS ®
HEEREFAMEA  SIMERFMNEESEHE
EZFRE BEMEBEHRTHR  F=RLEREFR
SRREEEREFHA TR FHBINERD
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBEN WK DN

In 2023, the supply and demand relationship gradually
reversed in the domestic integrated circuit chips
market with intensified industry competition, causing
the selling price of smart card chips to gradually
decline in the second half of the year. However, due
to the impact of the shortage of supply of smart card
chip products caused by the continuous shortage of
integrated circuits production capacity in 2022, the
selling prices of some of the Group’s major products
remained high in the first quarter of 2023, increasing
the average selling price of the products sold during the
year when comparing with last year, coupled with the
impact of the increase in sales volume when comparing
with last year, the Group’s revenue for the year ended
31 December 2023 amounted to HK$3,019.1 million,
representing an increase of 21.6% when comparing
with last year.

Lower market demand and a slower pace of product
sales in the second half of 2023 led to an increase in
provision for inventories, resulting in a slight decrease
in overall gross profit margin for the year ended 31
December 2023 when comparing with last year.

2023 FBAERERERTSEHKEBEREERLS P
B ITERFNE ERER RO EEERE
NHEFEE L NE - A ° X2022F K ERRERL
BEZREFNERROFERBTEROY
2. KEESMNEEEME2023FE—FTEHHE
EERNASTE  BERFANEHERNTHHEE
BRNBEFEEMREA  BNBEEEREFHA
FAMRE  AEEFHZE2023F12A831BIEFE
HIMAE3019.1888 L BREF LEFA21.6% °

2023FE THFEMBERTR  EREEEZN
12 FIEGFEREEN - BEEZ2023F12431
BIFFENBEENRE X FERMTE -
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Management'Discussion and Analysis

Selling and marketing costs for the year ended 31
December 2023 amounted to HK$79.4 million (2022:
HK$76.2 million). The percentage of selling and
marketing costs to revenue decreased to 2.6% from
3.1% last year. The Group continued to implement
stringent cost control measures during the year.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31
December 2023 amounted to HK$532.8 million,
representing an increase of 16.4% when comparing
with last year. The increase in administrative expenses
was primarily due to an increase in research and
development costs during the year. The percentage
of administrative expenses to revenue decreased to
17.6% from 18.4% last year. The Group continued to
implement stringent cost control measures during the
year.

Research and development costs for the year ended
31 December 2023 amounted to HK$421.4 million
(2022: HK$348.1 million). The percentage of research
and development costs to revenue was 14.0% (2022:
14.0%). Research and development during the year
primarily focused on the research and development of
secure element chip and secure microcontroller unit
chip series of products, the continuous improvements
in smart card products’ performance, research in
the secure element chips for the Internet of Things
sector and the intelligent connected vehicles sector
applications, and the development of application
systems and solutions.

BEEEFNWRE DM

HE2023F12A31H LFERIHE RTIGHERK
RATIABEBIT(2022F 7628 8B TT) © tH
ERMIGHEERAERANBE D LEAEFNZ1%
TPEZE2.6% o ANEEF R EE i BAS B AIE H

i o

H22023%F128318 L FEMTTHRFE X A532.8
BEAL BREFLHI164%  KRFEETHH
STHENEEAFRRFABEKR AL N 17
BRASMBANBD LEBEEFHNI84% NEE
17.6% ° ANEEF AELE T KBRS A A TS FIFE i

HE2023F12A31B LFEMHAFELAER KA
421 AB&EABTT (20226 : 348 1B & B L) » %
NMHABERAGWMARNET DL A14.0% (20224 -
14.0%) - FAMRLRHABLTEMNERLECH
MEZ2EECRRIEGNHATERAE TR
Emee AR - AN AEELE RS s
MBELE AT 20 R T A N B R AR R
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBEN WK DN

Other income

Government grants recognised as income increased
by 64.2% to HK$31.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2023, resulting from an increase
in government grants received for research and
development costs incurred by the Group in the year.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group consistently employs a prudent treasury
policy and generally finances its working capital
requirements through internal resources, and bank
and other borrowings. At 31 December 2023, the
Group had cash and cash equivalents amounting to
HK$1,107.5 million, of which 97.9% was denominated
in Renminbi, 1.8% in United States dollars and 0.3% in
Hong Kong dollars (2022: HK$1,172.7 million, of which
99.3% was denominated in Renminbi, 0.4% in United
States dollars and 0.3% in Hong Kong dollars).

At 31 December 2023, the Group had bank and other
borrowings of HK$496.6 million, all were due within
one year and all were denominated in Renminbi (2022:
HK$615.7 million, all were due within one year and
all were denominated in Renminbi). Among these
borrowings, (i) all were unsecured (2022: all were
unsecured), and (ii) all were borrowed at fixed interest
rates (2022: all were borrowed at fixed interest rates).
At 31 December 2023, committed borrowing facilities
available to the Group but not drawn amounted to
HK$794.7 million.

HA WA

BARAEE A =2023F 128318 It FEZEEM
ENHABEXNAES  BRNEIEN  FRAEER
BUA BT/ EF642%E31.08 88T °

BBERERARBDES

AEE-EXAEENEEBRRLRBEBRAN
HERMBOREGMEERMTHEEESHD
Tk o W2023F12A31H - AEBEEHEEEHE K
BeESEYWAII075B888 L EFEFI7.9%M
AERM - 1.8%AF T K0.3%AB T F (2022
F 172 7BEEB T EFEIO3I%AARE -
0.4%AFETROI%UABITEER) o

M2023F 128318 - AEBRITREMEEA
496.6EEBA T 2R —FRIBEEZHEAAR
BB (2022F : 615788 T 280 —F A
FHEEEUARKBEE) - ZEEEFOHZEE
I (2022F - 2EAEER) - ()2 EAE
EMEREE (2022F : 2HUUBEEMNEREE) - B
2023F12A310 ' AKEHABAZEAHEE
ERE AT TAEB T
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Management'Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s revenue is mainly denominated in
Renminbi and payments are denominated in Renminbi
and Hong Kong dollars. The Group will make use of
hedging contracts, when appropriate, to hedge the
risk of foreign exchange fluctuation arising from its
operations.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had net current
assets of HK$1,459.9 million (2022: HK$1,538.7
million). The gearing ratio of the Group is calculated
as net debt divided by total equity and net debt of the
Group. At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022,
the Group was in net cash position.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2023, the Group did not pledge any
assets as collateral for its borrowings (2022: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any
material outstanding capital commitment (2022: nil) for
the acquisition of fixed assets and intangible assets. The
Group did not have any material contingent liability at
31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

BEEEFNWRE DM

AEBPATEUARBEEMNFTAARE R
BILAEE - AEBESER N A E QLR
BHEEKINERE AR o

M2023F12A31B ASERBHEEFER
1,459.95 & /870 (20224 : 1,538. 78 &8 L) °
AEBMEAGGEL RUANEBNES FREBR A
ERBBERERFEIE - 2023F12H31B &
R2022F12A318 » AEBRMNFRESMMN -

EERH

MR2023F12A831H » AEBEWE AHESRFET
A& E (20224 : &) o

EXABERIEEE

R2023F12A31H ' AEEBEMBEERTEENRE
FWEELEEMEKNHARET ZERNFALE (2022
£ m) o A20235F 128318 © AN & W {F {7
EARBEEE (202226 : &) -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBEN WK DN

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2023, the Group had approximately
430 employees (including senior management of the
Group), 33.7% of which is female and the majority of
whom were based in Mainland China. Employee benefit
expenses for the year were HK$337.8 million.

The Group recognises the importance of high
calibre and competent employee and has a strict
recruitment policy and performance appraisal scheme.
Remuneration policies of employee are largely in line
with industry practices, and are formulated on the basis
of performance and experience and will be reviewed
regularly. Bonuses and other merit payments are
linked with the performance of the Group and of the
individuals as incentive to optimise performance.

The Group’s employee training is divided into three
levels: corporate level, departmental level and individual
level. Corporate level training focuses mainly on
cross-departmental and internal all-purpose trainings,
such as new employee trainings, and quality and
safety requirements trainings. Departmental level
training focuses mainly on enhancing knowledge and
skills in departmental professional areas. Trainings for
individuals act as a useful supplement to the two types
of training above.

18 8 & % B BUR

2023 12H318 - A& EE A #430% & B
(BREAEESHEERAE)  EHH33.7%AELK
MR KEH AR ERMIE - NEEREES BN
% A337.8EEETT

AEESHINEBEAT MEREENEREN - X
BABENRBERERANEE - BEEOFH
MR EXANEOIABARN - JHRRE R THER
SRS E I E HFEHRE o BAREMBER
TRFARELERNRBERAMERE - UEEE
BERRERR -

AEBREEINDR/RAFL  HPAARLEA=
Ao RAVARBINRER B B FT R A B & A 1S
Al - E BEFIME 8 k2 2KIF - #F
AIEDAIER AN MR IEF - ERPFIE %
FREEM -  AAEIERRMENERMI
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The Company is committed to achieving the best
corporate governance practices by emphasising
on accountability, transparency, independence,
responsibility and fairness. The Company is dedicated
to exercise corporate governance through regular
reviews of its adopted practices with reference to the
Corporate Governance Code (the “"CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions in the CG Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2023. The following summarises
the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company.

CULTURE AND VALUES

As an integrated circuits design enterprise, the Group
focuses on the information security needs of “Industrial
digitalisation and digital industrialisation”, and
provides smart card and secure element chip products
and application solutions for sectors such as fintech,
network communications, Internet of Things, intelligent
connected vehicles, intelligent transportations, smart
manufacturing, etc. The Group will continue to build
a corporate culture of “Proactivity and pursuit of
success” and strive to become a world-class smart cards
and secure element chips design enterprise.

STRATEGIC PLANNING

The Company has an ongoing strategic planning
process to identify and assess opportunities and
challenges that the Group may face and to develop
a planned course of action for the Group to create
sustainable value for the Company’s shareholders in the
long run.

Corporate Governance Report
TRERQHRS
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Corporate Governance Report
S ,'_quiﬁd:

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprised two
executive directors, two non-executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors. The role
of the chairman of the Board and the role of the chief
executive are separate. The chairman of the Board is
responsible for leading and overseeing the functioning
of the Board and the strategic development of the
Group. The chief executive is delegated with the
authority and responsibility for managing the Group’s
business, and the implementation of the Group’s
strategies in achieving the overall business objectives.
Throughout the year ended 31 December 2023, the
position of the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive were not held by the same individual. As
at 31 December 2023, the position of the chairman
of the Board and the chief executive were held
separately by Mr. Xu Haidong and Mr. Chang Feng,
respectively. Such division of responsibilities helps to
reinforce their independence and accountability. There
are no financial, business, family or other material
relationships among the directors (including the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive).

All the directors, including the non-executive directors,
do not have a specific term of appointment and will
be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the bye-laws
of the Company. The remuneration of the directors
are determined with reference to their duties and the
prevailing market conditions.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of long
term business objectives, strategies and plans, and
to monitor and control the operating and financial
performance of the Group. The day-to-day operations
and implementation of business objectives of the Group
are delegated to the chief executive. The management
is delegated with the necessary authority to manage
the daily operations and perform its duties.

BExg

R2023F12R31H  EECHMBHAITEE MW
BHPITEEN R BURNTEEHEHK - ESF
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Iixﬁlm¥%&7§i$%lmwﬁ C DUERE
KB EIE - NEE2023F12A31BIEEERN -
§$§£ﬁ&ﬂﬂzwﬁEﬁﬁaulaﬁEE NG
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14 China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2023



The Board is also responsible for performing overall
corporate governance duties, including formulating and
reviewing the Company’s corporate governance policy
and practice, reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, formulating,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to directors, and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code. During the year, the
Board has performed all of the above functions.

The Board is responsible for appointing new directors
to fill any vacancy on the Board. The Company’s
policy concerning diversity of board members (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) sets out the approach to
achieve diversity of the Board members. Appointment
of directors will be based on merit that complements
and expands the skills and experience of the Board,
and after due regard to factors which include but is
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, and professional experience towards
achieving diversity of the Board members. Regarding
gender diversity, the Board is of the view that one
female representation on the Board is sufficient.
Currently, there is one female director on the
Board. The nomination policy of the Company (the
“Nomination Policy”) can ensure that there will be
potential successors to the Board which continues the
gender diversity within the Board.

Corporate Governance Report
TRERQHRS
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Corporate Governance Report
N :A\Aiﬁﬂ:

During the year, the Board has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity
Policy. The Board considered that diversity of the Board
members has been achieved as the Board is composed
of directors from a diverse range of background.

An analysis of the composition of the Board members
at 31 December 2023 is set out below.

100%

Executive
director (29%)
HITEE
0% (55%)

Male (71%)

9, B (71%) Non-executive
60% - . director (29%)
FTEE
(29%)

40%

\ndependent
non-

20% Female (29%)
1z (29%)
0%
Gender Designation
TR )

The Group will invest more resources in training and
recruiting high performing female employees, with the
aim of promoting them to the senior management or
directorship of the Group.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of mechanisms to
ensure independent views and input are available to the
Board. Taking into account the following channels and
mechanisms, the Board considered that the Company had
in place mechanisms which remain effective to ensure a
strong independent element within the Board:

(1) 42% of the Board members are independent
non-executive directors;

FRN BECCRANETEXNESTIELERENE
HBEARMEE EETRE HREESTHERZ
TRAEEMNEEAK AHEERESTEHEN
Z ik -

R2023F 12 A31HMEET 2K 8HMK D HTH Y20
‘|To

Integrated circuits industry
experience (29%)

SRAKE BRT AL HR (29%)

Above 71 years old (29%)
TR L (29%)

Corporate finance (14%)
BERE (14%)

51-60 years old (57 %)
51-603% (57%) Accounting (43%
it (43%

Bankmg and
fmance 14%)

Age group Expertise
FietER R

B R R E % BRI KRR = e M (R
S BNRENREREAEEZSRERAR
=

FR EFCCERVABRETSAUESEILR

ﬁ%ﬂis‘iﬁ’ﬁ%%ﬂH’U;ﬁ@'l%ﬂ&xﬁau cEEBAT
BERES - EFSRAA DB MRA RS

EE%%?QWE?@KE’M%_UE% =

(1) RIEFERER/BUNFNTES
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(3)

annual meeting between the chairman of
the Board and all independent non-executive
directors without presence of other directors
provide an effective platform for the chairman
of the Board to listen to independent views on
various issues concerning the Group;

independent professional advice would be
provided to independent non-executive directors
upon reasonable request to assist them to
perform their duties to the Company;

all independent non-executive directors
are required to provide an annual written
confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and

no equity-based remuneration with
performance-related elements are granted to
independent non-executive directors.
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All directors have actively participated in the review
and monitoring of the Group’s business. The Board
meets regularly and at least 4 times a year. Between
scheduled meetings, the senior management of the
Group provides information to the Board on a regular
basis regarding the activities and development in
the businesses of the Group. The directors have full
access to information on the Group and independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense. With respect to regular meetings
of the Board, the directors will be given written notice
of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and an
agenda with supporting Board papers no less than
3 days prior to the meeting. For other meetings,
directors will be given as much notice as is reasonable
and practicable in the circumstances. If a director has
a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be
material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting. Independent non-executive directors
who, and whose close associates, have no material
interest in the matter should be present at that Board
meeting. All minutes of Board and Board committee
meetings are kept by the company secretary of the
Company for record with sufficient details of the
matters considered and decisions reached by the Board
or Board committee(s), including any concerns raised
or dissenting views expressed by any director. These
minutes are available for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any director. The
attendance record of each of the directors at general
meeting(s), Board meetings and Board committee
meetings held in 2023 are set out on page 31 of this
annual report. Besides providing sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group, all directors
have disclosed to the Company the number and
nature of the offices held in other public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments, and
updated the Company on any subsequent changes in
a timely manner. Appropriate insurance on directors’
liabilities are in force to protect the directors against
their potential legal liabilities to third parties that may
be incurred in the course of performing their duties.
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The directors acknowledge the need to continue to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills for
making contributions to the Company. The trainings
and continuous professional development activities
with appropriate emphasis on the roles and functions
of a director of a listed company participated by the
directors in 2023 are set out below.
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EEMRATERERRLFTHWENE NG
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Reading Attending
regulatory external
requirements seminars/
updates trainings

LIk S8R
EERE AR

RHEAR WEE E

Non-executive directors FHITES

Xu Haidong FFER

Liu Jinmei 2| ¥g
Executive directors HITES
Chang Feng 22

Luo Wenjing BXE
Independent non-executive directors BN FEHITESE

Chan Kay Cheung PRI 2
Qiu Hongsheng B
Chow Chan Lum PR

v 4
v 4
v 4
v 4
v 4
v v
v 4

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the company
secretary of the Company, Mr. Ng Kui Kwan, has met
the requirement on professional training under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

On 24 January 2024, Ms. Luo Wenjing resigned as
an executive director of the Company and Mr. Wang
Jian was appointed as an executive director of the
Company.

Mr. Wang Jian has obtained the legal advice referred
to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules as regards to
the requirements under the Listing Rules that are
applicable to him as a director of the Company on
15 January 2024. Mr. Wang lJian has confirmed that
he has understood his obligations as a director of the
Company.
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THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules to regulate the
directors’ securities transactions. All directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
that they have fully complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2023, the remuneration and
nomination committee comprised three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Qiu Hongsheng,
Mr. Chan Kay Cheung and Mr. Chow Chan Lum,
and a non-executive director Ms. Liu Jinmei. Mr. Qiu
Hongsheng is the chairman of the remuneration and
nomination committee. The terms of reference of
the remuneration and nomination committee, which
described its authority and duties, is available on the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(www.hkex.com.hk) and the website of the Company
(www.cecht.com.cn).

The principal responsibilities of the remuneration
and nomination committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and the remuneration of the directors and the
senior management, reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’s corporate objectives, determining, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
individual executive director and senior management,
making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors, identifying
and making recommendation to the Board on possible
appointees as directors, making recommendations to
the Board on matters relating to appointment or re-
appointment of directors, succession planning for
directors, reviewing and/or approving matters relating
to share schemes under the Listing Rules and assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.
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The Nomination Policy sets out the criteria and
procedures to be adopted when considering candidates
to be appointed or re-appointed as director of the
Company. A summary of the nomination criteria of the
Nomination Policy is set out below.

(1)  ability to contribute to the effective carrying out
by the Board of its responsibilities;

(2) effect on the Board’s composition and the
diversity of its members in all its aspects,
which includes but is not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, and
professional experience;

(3) independence of the candidate; and
(4) commitment to devote sufficient time.

The Board will review the Nomination Policy on a
regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

In making recommendations to the Board in respect
of the composition of the Board, the appointment,
re-appointment or removal of directors, the
remuneration and nomination committee will give
due regard to nomination criteria as set out in the
Nomination Policy.

During the year, the remuneration and nomination
committee held three meetings. The attendance record
of each of the committee members at these meetings
are set out on page 31 of this annual report. The
work performed by the remuneration and nomination
committee during the year included reviewing the
remuneration policy and the remuneration of the
directors and the senior management, assessing
performance of the executive directors, determining
the remuneration of the executive directors, reviewing
the policy for the nomination of directors, making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors, and assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive
directors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the number
of senior management (excluding directors) whose
remuneration fell within the band from HK$1,000,001
up to HK$1,500,000 was one. Details of the
remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out on page 141 of this annual
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2023, the audit committee
comprised three independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, Mr. Qiu Hongsheng
and Mr. Chow Chan Lum. Mr. Chan Kay Cheung is
the chairman of the audit committee. The terms of
reference of the audit committee, which described
its authority and duties, is available on the website
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(www.hkex.com.hk) and the website of the Company
(www.cecht.com.cn).

The audit committee is responsible for reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with applicable standards, discussing
issues arising from the review of the interim financial
information of the Group and the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group with
the external auditor, and any matters the external
auditor may wish to discuss, monitoring the integrity
of the Group's accounts, financial statements, interim
reports and annual reports, and reviewing significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them,
reviewing the Group’s financial reporting system, and
risk management and internal control systems, and
ensuring that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Group, and reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness
of the internal audit function. External auditor and the
directors are invited to attend the committee meetings
as and when necessary. The audit committee meets at
least twice a year with the external auditor. The audit
committee also serves as a channel of communication
between the Board and the external auditor.
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During the year, the audit committee held two
meetings. The attendance record of each of the
committee members at these meetings are set out on
page 31 of this annual report. The work performed by
the audit committee during the year included reviewing
the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022, the
unaudited consolidated interim financial statements
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2023
and the audit plan and approach of the external
auditor, monitoring the progress and results of the
audit regularly, reviewing the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, reviewing the report on the works of the audit
department for the year 2022, the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal audit function, the continuing
connected transactions of the Group, and the
independence of the external auditor, and making
recommendation to the Board for the appointment and
remuneration of external auditor.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company’s audit department is responsible for
carrying out analysis and independent assessment on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’'s risk
management and internal control systems. The duties
of the audit department include:

o reviewing all important operations and internal
controls of the Group;

o comprehensive audits of the practices, procedures,
expenditure and internal controls of all important
operational units and support units and
subsidiaries on a regular basis; and

o special reviews of areas of concern identified by
the management or the audit committee.

The audit department reports directly to the audit
committee and has direct access to the Board through
the chairman of the audit committee. The audit
department may directly report to the audit committee
without consulting the management.
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The audit department issued reports to senior
management covering various operational and financial
units of the Group. The audit department also conducted
reviews of major projects and contracts as well as areas of
concern, if any, identified by the management.

Concerns (if any) which have been reported by the audit
department were monitored regularly by the management
and the audit committee until corrective measures have
been implemented.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the fees
payable to the Company’s external auditor in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided to the Company
and its subsidiaries are set out below.
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2023
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HK$'000
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Audit services Bz PR 2,088
Non-audit services EFZIRTE -
2,088
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT EERIE A

The Board is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group and its
financial performance and cash flows during the
reporting period in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards. A statement from the
auditor about its responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is set out on pages 50
to 58 of this annual report. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Board had selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently, had made prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates and prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.
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The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems,
including reviewing their effectiveness annually. The
audit committee is delegated by the Board with the
responsibility to oversee independently the Group's
financial, risk management and internal control systems
and report to the Board on the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
annually.

Appropriate policies and controls have been formulated
and established for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, maintaining proper
financial and accounting records, ensuring compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and identifying
and managing major risks that may impact on the
Group’s performance. As the risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage, rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, they can only be expected to provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The management is responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, while
the audit committee oversees the actions of the
management and review the effectiveness of the
systems that have been put in place. Systems and
procedures are in place in the Group to identify,
control and report on major types of risk the Group
encounters. Operational units are responsible for
identifying the potential risks, and analysing and
evaluating the significance of such risks. Operational
units also assess the adequacy of existing controls
and implement treatment plans to mitigate such risks
and report the view of risks and proposal for the
improvement of the existing systems and procedures
regularly to the audit committee, and ultimately to the
Board on major findings. The audit committee reviews
the existing risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and makes appropriate
improvement when necessary, with a view to enhance
the effectiveness of such systems.
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The Company has engaged SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited, an independent advisory firm, to conduct
an annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 December 2023. The scope of review
included the internal control systems of the Group at
the entity level, as well as major business processes of
its principal subsidiary, CEC Huada Electronic Design
Co., Ltd, covering key controls such as financial,
operational and compliance controls of the Group.
The review results have been reported to the audit
committee and the Board. The Board is satisfied that
these systems were effective and adequate throughout
the year ended 31 December 2023. In this regard,
to enhance the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, the Group
has begun to implement the recommendations put
forward by SHINEWING Risk Services Limited.

The audit committee has also held discussions with
the Group’s external auditor, to ensure that a sound
internal control system is maintained and operated by
the management in compliance with the established
procedures and standards.

The Board has reviewed and ensured the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and the budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

The Board is responsible for the handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Company
has formulated and implemented procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in
a timely manner so as to allow all the stakeholders
to apprehend the latest position of the Group. These
procedures and their effectiveness are subject to review
on a regular basis with reference to the Listing Rules,
the Securities and Futures Ordinance and in accordance
with formulated procedures.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a
special general meeting

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, registered
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the registered
office of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of
the Board or the company secretary of the Company
to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such special general meeting shall
be held within two months from the date of deposit of
such requisition.

The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of these shareholders. The written requisition will be
verified with the Company’s share registrars and upon
their confirmation that the requisition is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company will
ask the Board to convene a special general meeting
by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory and regulatory requirements to all the
registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the written
requisition has been verified as not in order, the
shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, a special general meeting will not be
convened as requested.

If within twenty one days from the date of deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene
a special general meeting, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
a special general meeting, but any special general
meeting so convened shall be held within three months
from the date of deposit of such requisition.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at a general meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
either any number of the registered shareholders
holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company, or not
less than 100 registered shareholders, can request the
Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders entitled
to receive notice of the next general meeting notice
of any resolution which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The written requisition and a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses for serving
the notice of the resolution and circulating the
statement submitted by the registered shareholders
concerned in accordance with the statutory and
regulatory requirements to all the registered
shareholders must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of
the company secretary of the Company not less than
six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than
one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition; and where an annual general meeting is
called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition
requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited,
the requisition though not deposited within the time
required shall be deemed to have been properly
deposited for such purpose.
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The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of these shareholders. The written requisition will be
verified with the Company’s share registrars and upon
their confirmation that the requisition is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company will
ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda
for the general meeting, and serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted by
the registered shareholders concerned in accordance
with the statutory and regulatory requirements to all
the registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the
written requisition has been verified as not in order, the
shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be
included in the agenda for the general meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a director

Pursuant to the Company's bye-laws, a registered
shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting wishes to propose a person other than
a director of the Company for election as a director
at the general meeting must validly serve (1) his/her
written notice of intention to propose a candidate
for election as a director at the general meeting; (2)
a written notice signed by the nominated candidate
of the candidate’s willingness to be elected; (3) the
nominated candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules;
and (4) the nominated candidate’s written consent to
the publication of his/her personal data, either to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Room 3403, 34th floor, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong; or to the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited at 17th floor, Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong no
earlier than the day after the dispatch of notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board and the management maintain a continuing
dialogue with the shareholders through various
channels. For example, the chairman of the Board,
chief executive, other members of the Board and the
external auditor attend the annual general meeting
to meet the shareholders where the Board would
answer questions raised by the shareholders on the
performance of the Group. The Company’'s website
which contains corporate information, interim reports,
annual reports, announcements and circulars issued by
the Company as well as the recent developments of
the Group enable the shareholders to have timely and
updated information of the Group. The Company's
shareholders’ communication policy (the “Shareholders’
Communication Policy”) is available on the website of
the Company (www.cecht.com.cn).

Having considered the multiple channels of
communication and engagement in place, the Board
is of the view that the Shareholders’ Communication
Policy has been properly in place in 2023 and remains
effective.

Procedures for directing shareholders’
enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to
the Board in writing through the company secretary of
the Company whose contact details are as follows:

Room 3403, 34th floor, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Facsimile: (852) 2598 9018

Email: investor@cecht.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board
at the general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The constitutional documents of the Company is
available on the website of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and the website of the Company.
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At the annual general meeting held on 28 June 2023,
a special resolution was passed by the shareholders
of the Company approving (a) certain amendments
(the “Amendments”) made to the bye-laws of the
Company to (i) bring the bye-laws of the Company in
line with the latest legal and regulatory requirements,
including the amendments made to Appendix Al to
the Listing Rules, and (ii) incorporate certain house-
keeping changes, and (b) the adoption of the amended
and restated bye-laws incorporating the Amendments
in substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the then
existing bye-laws of the Company. Details of the
Amendments are set out in the circular dated 5 June
2023.

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

202356 A28ARTHRRBAFARE L AR
AR BB RIRARE « HEGQE AR BRI A
EH B E TIERT ([ZEEET]) - ROERRFH
MAIABRTREAIIREERTE  BRYLETHE
I ERATER B 1EET - ROINVMAE TABKEREE
B - ROO)EMNE B ZZEETNKLIEE] RES A 4H
Al LR BB A RARERFAME - ZFIER]
NFIED SN B A2023F6 ASHMEEKA °

2R ETE

Details of each of the director’s attendance at general BEEEFM02FHEFEREAEG EFEGRENE
meetings, Board meetings and Board committee EREGGRIABHINNOT -
meetings held in 2023 are set out below.
Meetings attended/held
HE/ BTEERY
Remuneration
and
nomination
Audit committee
committee HMK General
Board®? 7 B2 meetings
EEg0 ZEg ZEg RRAE
Non-executive directors FUTES
Xu Haidong AR 5/5 1710
Liu Jinmei®&® Z5tgeen 4/4 33
Executive directors HITES
Chang Feng Bk 3/4
Luo Wenjing BXE 3/4 1N
Independent non-executive directors BYKYTES
Chan Kay Cheung RIS 5/5 2120 33 17
Qiu Hongsheng iprides 5/5 2/2 3731 11
Chow Chan Lum BEM 5/5 2 33 71
Notes: B 3E -
(1) Chairman. (1) *EgfE e

(2) Included a Board meeting where the chairman of the Board
met with independent non-executive directors without other
directors and management present.

3) Mr. Chang Feng has appointed Ms. Liu Jinmei, a non-executive
director, to act as his alternate director to attend one of the
Board meetings held during the year.

(4) Ms. Luo Wenjing has appointed Ms. Liu Jinmei, a non-executive
director, to act as her alternate director to attend one of the
Board meetings held during the year.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENREREEAEHE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Haidong, aged 54, is the Chairman of the
Board. Mr. Xu graduated from lJiangxi University of
Finance and Economics and holds a Master’s degree in
Accounting, obtained a Doctorate degree in Accounting
from School of Management at Jinan University, and
is a senior economist. Mr. Xu is currently serving
as a director and the general manager of Huada
Semiconductor Co., Ltd (“Huada Semiconductor”),
a controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Xu
was the deputy manager of the supervision section
2 of Zhuhai City Central Sub-branch of the People’s
Bank of China, the controller of corporate financial
of State-owned Assets Management Administration
of Zhuhai City, the deputy general manager of China
Electronics Financial Co., Ltd, the deputy director of the
finance department of China Electronics Corporation
Limited (“CEC"), and the chief accountant of China
Greatwall Technology Group Co., Ltd (a company with
its shares listing on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).
Mr. Xu was appointed as a director of the Company
with effect from April 2021.

Ms. Liu Jinmei, aged 54. Ms. Liu graduated from Jilin
University and holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Chinese
Language and obtained a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from Beijing Institute of Technology.
Ms. Liu is currently serving as the deputy general
manageress of Huada Semiconductor and a director
of China Electronics Smart Card Co., Ltd. Ms. Liu was
the marketing strategy department manageress of
BOE Technology Group Co., Ltd and the marketing
department manageress of China Huaxu Golden
Card Co., Ltd. Ms. Liu joined CEC Huada Electronic
Design Co., Ltd (“Huada Electronics”) in 2005 as the
marketing department manageress and was in charge
of marketing for a number of years. Ms. Liu was
appointed as a director of the Company in January
2018.

FHITES

FRRAE S4 BEBQEF HFEERER
IAMERESTEEXETRFELTEN - TR
BEHABEEER G BEENEELSEMN -
WASBTER o FFAERTARRT] 2 IERIEE
EAYERERAR([EAFBR)ESERE
IR o FAEECERRARBITHRENHLXIT
EE_RERNR KETREEELEEERL
¥ BeeE  PRETFEERETARSIRL
B hREFEEEXSEARAR([FEETF
SEDPBBRET  RPEERREEERS
BERAR (ZARBRODRFINEBESFR ST ET) 2
S - FAEAEEZTAARRES  B2021F
AARBAER -

BBt 545 - BIL T EERETMAREBHRX
RURBELEN  TRIEREBEIAEZEREIR
ERBE LB AR TREEAFERIBLE
MR EEEEAREARANES - Lt EIR
RARREBRG AR A G TSRS 2048 E &b
FEBERERETRARTEDLEE - BIxLER
2005F INASL R BEREFRITBREMEAF]
([EREFDAMEHEREYEETEMSIES
F o BLLM2018F1AEZTARRNAIES o

32 China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2023



Biographies of Directors.and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chang Feng, aged 42, is the Deputy Chairman
of the Board and the Deputy Managing Director of
the Company. Mr. Chang graduated from University
of Science and Technology Beijing with a major in
Computer Science and Technology, and obtained a
Master's degree in Retail Management from NEOMA
Business School in France. Mr. Chang is currently
serving as the general manager of Huada Electronics, a
director and the general manager of Shanghai Huahong
Integrated Circuit Co., Ltd, and the non-executive
deputy general manager of Huada Semiconductor.
Mr. Chang was a technical support engineer of
Oberthur Card Systems (China) Co., Ltd and a technical
support engineer of Aien Technology (China) Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Chang joined Huada Electronics in 2006 and
was the marketing manager, sales manager, sales
department manager and deputy general manager
of Huada Electronics. Mr. Chang was appointed as a
director of the Company in September 2021.

Mr. Wang Jian, aged 42. Mr. Wang graduated from
the University of Electronic Science and Technology of
China and holds a Bachelor’s degree in Optoelectronic
Information, and is an engineer. Mr. Wang is currently
serving as the secretary to the board of directors, the
administrative controller, the director of the board
office and the director of the general department of
Huada Semiconductor, an executive director and the
general manager of CEC Chitsing Technology Co.,
Ltd, and a director of Xiaohua Semiconductor Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Wang was the secretary of the general office
of Nanjing Huadong Electronics Group Co., Ltd, and
the director-general of the personnel and general
affairs department and the director-general of the
administrative and legal affairs department of Nanjing
CEC PANDA CF Technology Co., Ltd. Mr. Wang was
appointed as a director of the Company in January
2024.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAEHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, aged 77. Mr. Chan was an
executive director and the deputy chief executive of The
Bank of East Asia, Limited, and the vice chairman of
The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited. Mr. Chan joined
The Bank of East Asia, Limited in 1965 and possesses
extensive knowledge and experience in the banking
industry. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers. Mr. Chan is also currently
serving as an independent non-executive director of
Chu Kong Shipping Enterprises (Group) Company
Limited and SOCAM Development Limited (all being
companies with their shares listing on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange). Mr. Chan was appointed as a director
of the Company in May 1997.

Mr. Qiu Hongsheng, aged 59. Mr. Qiu graduated
from the School of Management of Harbin Institute
of Technology and holds a Postgraduate degree
in Management Science and Engineering, and is a
Certified Public Valuer in the PRC, an International
Certified Senior Enterprise Risk Manager, a Certified
M&A Dealmaker in the PRC, a senior economist and a
fund management intermediary. Mr. Qiu is currently
serving as an executive director and the general
manager of China Consultants of Advisory and Finance
Management Co., Ltd and a visiting professor of
Tianjin University of Finance and Economics. Mr. Qiu
worked in 710 Research Institute of the Ministry of
Aerospace Industry of China as an economic analyst for
a number of years. Mr. Qiu joined China Consultants
of Advisory and Finance Management Co., Ltd, a
company directly managed by the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC, in 1994 and focuses on management
consulting and corporation restructuring transactions.
Mr. Qiu possesses a wealth of professional knowledge
and practical experiences in corporate finance, mergers
and acquisitions, strategic integration, meticulous
management, etc. Mr. Qiu is also currently serving
as an independent non-executive director of China
Electronics Optics Valley Union Holding Company
Limited (a company with its shares listing on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange), and an independent director
of Valiant Co., Ltd and China Greatwall Technology
Group Co., Ltd (all being companies with their shares
listing on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and GRINM
Semiconductor Materials Co., Ltd (a company with
its shares listing on the Shanghai Stock Exchange).
Mr. Qiu was appointed as a director of the Company in
November 2012.
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Biographies of Directors.and Senior Management

Mr. Chow Chan Lum, aged 73. Mr. Chow graduated
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in 1974,
received a Postgraduate Diploma in Accountancy
from the University of Strathclyde in Glasgow, United
Kingdom in 1975 and was awarded a Postgraduate
Diploma in Chinese Laws by the University of Macau in
1987. Mr. Chow has been a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Scotland since 1979 and
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Chow is a member of the
Foreign Experts Consultative Committee on China
Independent Auditing Standards of the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC. Mr. Chow served on a number of
committees of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, including as the deputy chairman
of the Auditing & Assurance Standards Committee,
and a member of the Investigation Panel and the
Professional Standards Monitoring Committee and
as president of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
Mr. Chow is currently serving as an honorary advisor
and committee member of various social bodies, and
has been a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Guangdong Province, the
PRC from 1997 to 2012. Mr. Chow was awarded the
Medal of Honor by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region of the PRC in 2013 and
conferred the Honorary Doctorate by The Hong Kong
Academy for Performing Arts in 2021. Mr. Chow was
appointed as a director of the Company in June 2015.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ng Kui Kwan, aged 62, is the company secretary
of the Company. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Accounting from the University of Liverpool
in United Kingdom. Mr. Ng is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Ng has many years of experience in
auditing, finance and administration. Mr. Ng joined the
Company in November 2008.
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

The directors submit their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group is the design and sale
of integrated circuit chips. The activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 32 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTION

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 59 of
this annual report.

The Board recommends the payment of a dividend
of HK10.5 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: HK8.0 cents per share) totalling
HK$213,137,000 (2022: HK$162,390,000). The
dividend is subject to approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 13 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

At 31 December 2023, the issued share capital of
the Company consisted of 2,029,872,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each. Details of movements in the share
capital of the Company during the year are set out in
Note 22 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
63 of this annual report and Note 31 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2023
amounted to HK$385,468,000 (2022: HK$407,119,000).
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company implements a dividend policy which
aims to provide a stable dividend to shareholders.
The Company will take into account, among others,
the following factors when formulating proposals for
dividend distribution:

(a) the financial performance of the Group; and

(b)  the future funding requirements of the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 144 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's business review, discussion and
analysis of its performance for the year and the
outlook of its businesses are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 7 to 12 and on
pages 4 to 6 of this annual report, respectively. Such
discussions constitute an integral part of this report.

The performance and results of the Group’s businesses
are subject to various important factors, including
the relationship with its employees, customers and
suppliers. The Board believes that the employees
are one of the Group’s most important assets which
enable the Group to deliver long-term sustainable
performance. The Company will strive to ensure that
the remuneration level of employees is in line with
industry practices and prevailing market conditions,
and remuneration of employees will be determined
based on their performance. Being people-oriented,
the Group ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated
and also continues to improve and regularly review
and update its policies on remuneration and benefits,
training, and occupational health and safety.
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In addition, the Board places great emphasis on a
long-term and stable relationship with the Group’s
customers and suppliers for the continuous success
and growth of the Group’s businesses. The Group
has an extensive sales network across Mainland China
and to manage such network requires a close working
relationship with our customers directly and through
distributors, agents and other business partners.
The Group will continue to strengthen its customer
service to provide superior quality service to the users,
and strive to achieve the fastest response time and
highest customer satisfaction levels in the industry. The
Group'’s continuous effort to build trust and strengthen
mutually beneficial cooperation with its customers and
suppliers has facilitated to foster long-term cooperation
relationships with them. This is also in line with the
Group’s business strategy and objectives to maintain its
leading position in the smart card chips sector.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACTORS

As nearly all of the Group’s revenue is attributable to the
market in Mainland China, the results and performance
of the Group’s businesses depend on the growth of
the information technology industry in Mainland China,
particularly the electronic information technology
industry. Although the information technology industry
is demonstrating a growing trend in the past which is in
part supported by favourable government policies, any
negative trend in the information technology industry
or other restrictive policies may materially and adversely
affect the business, financial condition and results of
operation of the Group.

Mainland China integrated circuits market is highly
competitive with relatively short product cycles, and
is subject to government policies. The Group's results
of operation substantially depend on the successful
execution of its business strategy and development
plan to maintain its leading position in the design of
integrated circuit chips industry in Mainland China.
The Group may face challenges in implementing its
business strategies, and its ability to achieve its goals
may be adversely affected by various factors, some of
which are beyond its control. If the Group is not able to
execute its business strategy and development plan, its
businesses, financial condition and results of operation
may be materially and adversely affected.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION POLICY

As the practitioner and promotor of the integrated
circuit chips design industry in Mainland China, the
Group is committed to operating its business in an
environmentally-friendly manner. Although most of
the Group’s businesses are not subject to any of the
relevant environmental protection rules and regulations
restriction, the Board believes that operating the
Group’s businesses in an environmentally-friendly
manner is crucial to fulfilling its corporate social
responsibilities.

In order to maintain a high standard of staff awareness
of the relevant rules and regulations, the Group offers
periodical trainings to its management personnel. As
a result of the Group’s commitment to environmental
protection and through the implementation of
advanced technologies, the Group has achieved safe
and environmentally-friendly operation for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

The Company has published its Environmental,
Social and Governance Report with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
as set out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules on the
website of the Company (www.cecht.com.cn) and
on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (www.hkex.com.hk).

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Board believes that compliance with laws and
regulations is the cornerstone of an enterprise and
attaches considerable importance to it. Furthermore,
as the shares of the Company are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Company is
also subject to the rules and requirements under the
Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO"). To the best knowledge of the Board, the
Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations throughout the year ended 31 December
2023.
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DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Non-executive Directors

Xu Haidong (Chairman)
Liu Jinmei

Executive Directors

Chang Feng (Deputy Chairman and Deputy Managing
Director)

Wang Jian (appointed as director on 24 January 2024)

Luo Wenjing (resigned on 24 January 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Chan Kay Cheung
Qiu Hongsheng
Chow Chan Lum

Mr. Wang Jian was appointed as director by the Board
on 24 January 2024. Pursuant to bye-law 86(2) of the
bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Wang Jian will hold office
only until the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. Qiu Hongsheng, Mr. Xu Haidong and
Ms. Liu Jinmei will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has entered into a service contract
with each of the directors of the Company containing
terms relating to, among other things, compliance
with relevant laws and regulations, and observation
of the bye-laws of the Company. The directors of the
Company will be subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company and the Listing Rules.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2023, Ms. Liu Jinmei, a non-executive
director of the Company, was interested in 197,250
ordinary shares of the Company (long position)
(representing 0.01% of the issued share capital of the
Company), and Mr. Chang Feng, an executive director of
the Company, was interested in 28,000 ordinary shares of
the Company (long position) (representing 0.01% of the
issued share capital of the Company). Save as disclosed
herein, none of the directors nor the chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, any of its
holding companies or subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company or their respective close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to which the Company, any of its holding companies
or subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time
during the year had the Company or any of its
subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance
with any controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries, nor had any contract of significance been
entered into for the services provided by any controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in
Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements also
fall under the definition of “continuing connected
transactions” within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. These transactions have complied with the
requirements as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of certain of these transactions which
are subject to the reporting and annual review
requirements under the Listing Rules are set out below.
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Transaction

amount
in 2023
R2023%F
RELHE
Notes HK$'000
Type of transaction X585 HtaE THET
Sale of products and services MPEEFEEKERRHEEEM i, di 300,311
to the CEC Group K AR %5
Purchase of products and services from the AR B EFEBEK B AR KRB E R i, i 105,171
CEC Group K R %5
Property management fee paid to the CEC MAEEFEEKE RAIEZN i, dii 5,088
Group MEERE
Rental received from the CEC Group MAEEFEBEKERRIWERES i, iv 2,401
Additions of right-of-use assets RNEFTREEE i v 293
Fees and commissions for financial services A EEFEE /KB A7 S i Vi 135
paid to the CEC Group TRRBcFEERAS
Maximum daily balance of financial MASEERETEER 2 i, vi 130,869
assistances provided to the Group S ESESREE ]S
Maximum daily balance of deposits (together AEBEFRZEFERZ i, vi 752,084

with interests accrued thereon) placed by
the Group

RS R&ER (B
PREEZHE)
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Notes:

(i)

(iii)

CEC is a controlling shareholder of the Company. CEC and its
subsidiaries (the “CEC Group”) is therefore connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules.

On 13 April 2021, the Company entered into a business
services agreement (the “2021 Business Services Agreement”)
with CEC to reflect the terms of the proposed continuing
connected transactions and the proposed caps of the
transactions contemplated thereunder for the period
commencing from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2024.

Pursuant to the 2021 Business Services Agreement, the CEC
Group will provide technology development, processing,
testing and assembling services to the Group, the Group will
purchase raw materials, integrated circuit modules, softwares,
equipments and intellectual properties from the CEC Group,
and the Group will sell products such as integrated circuit
chips, modules and cards, and provide technology development
services to the CEC Group.

The 2021 Business Services Agreement and the related caps
were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting held on 29 June 2021,
details of which are set out in the circular dated 4 June 2021.

On 9 September 2022, the Company entered into the First
Supplemental 2021 Business Services Agreement with CEC
to revise the existing caps for the transactions contemplated
under the 2021 Business Services Agreement for each of the
years ending 31 December 2022 and 2023 and the six months
ending 30 June 2024. The First Supplemental 2021 Business
Services Agreement and the related caps were approved by
the independent shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting held on 25 October 2022, details of which are
set out in the circular dated 30 September 2022.

On 30 December 2020, the Company entered into a master
property management agreement (the “2021 Master Property
Management Agreement”) with CEC, pursuant to which
the CEC Group shall from time to time provide property
management services to the Group for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2021 and ending on 31 December
2023. The transactions contemplated under the 2021 Master
Property Management Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company. Details of the 2021
Master Property Management Agreement are set out in the
announcement dated 30 December 2020.

On 30 December 2020, the Company entered into a master
lease agreement (the “2021 First Master Lease Agreement”)
with CEC, pursuant to which the Group shall from time to
time lease properties located within the PRC and owned by the
Group to the CEC Group for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023. The
transactions contemplated under the 2021 First Master Lease
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company. Details of the 2021 First Master Lease Agreement are
set out in the announcement dated 30 December 2020.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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On 30 December 2020, the Company entered into a master
lease agreement (the “2021 Second Master Lease Agreement”)
with CEC, pursuant to which the Group shall from time to
time rent properties located within the PRC and owned by
the CEC Group from the CEC Group for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2021 and ending on 31 December
2023. The transactions contemplated under the 2021 Second
Master Lease Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company. Details of the 2021 Second
Master Lease Agreement are set out in the announcement
dated 30 December 2020.

On 13 April 2021, the Company entered into a financial
services agreement (the “2021 Financial Services Agreement”)
with China Electronics Financial Co., Ltd (“CEC Finance"”)
to reflect the terms of the proposed continuing connected
transactions and the proposed caps of the transactions
contemplated thereunder for the period commencing from
1 July 2021 to 30 June 2024. Pursuant to the 2021 Financial
Services Agreement, the financial services to be provided by
CEC Finance to the Group includes deposit services, financial
assistance and fee-based or commission-based financial
services.

The 2021 Financial Services Agreement and the related caps
were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting held on 29 June 2021,
details of which are set out in the circular dated 4 June 2021.

Pursuant to the 2021 Financial Services Agreement, the
maximum daily balance of deposits (together with the interests
accrued thereon) maintained by the Group with CEC Finance
shall not exceed RMB700 million and the Group’s actual
balance of deposits (together with the interests accrued
thereon) with CEC Finance on any given day during the year
ended 31 December 2023 had not exceeded such amount. For
the provision of financial assistance, the maximum amount of
financial assistance provided by CEC Finance to the Group shall
not exceed RMB700 million on any given day and the actual
balance of financial assistance provided by CEC Finance on
any given day during the year ended 31 December 2023 had
not exceeded such amount. For the provision of fee-based or
commission-based financial services, the consideration payable
by the Group shall not exceed RMB3.5 million and the total
consideration paid by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2023 had not exceeded such amount.

(vi)
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Save as disclosed above, all of the related party
transactions as disclosed in Note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements do not constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules.

The above continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company. In the opinion of the independent
non-executive directors of the Company, the above
continuing connected transactions were carried out in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group,
on normal commercial terms and were in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Based on the results of the work performed on the above
continuing connected transactions, the auditor of the
Company has confirmed in the letter to the Board that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that these continuing connected transactions:

o have not been approved by the Board,;

o were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group if the
transactions involve the provision of goods or
services by the Group;

° were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

o have exceeded the cap as disclosed in the
announcements.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ PARTICULARS

Changes in particulars of the directors of the Company
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) and
Rule 13.51(2)(e) of the Listing Rules are set out below.

Ms. Liu Jinmei ceased to be the chairman of the
supervisory committee of Beijing Chipadvanced
Technology Inc. (a company with its shares trading on
the National Equities Exchange and Quotations in the
PRC) in May 2023.

Mr. Xu Haidong was appointed as a director and the
general manager of Huada Semiconductor in December
2023.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report,
none of the directors of the Company are considered
to have interests in businesses which compete or are
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE
INTERESTS

At 31 December 2023, the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO showed
that the following persons (other than the directors
or chief executive of the Company) had notified the
Company that they had an interest of 5% or more in
the issued share capital of the Company:

EERBFRE 2ER

RAFEARBERARERN UEARBES
RS ARANEEXHE R KR RBK BT K
BB BT 2 X

BREARRER 2R

1202312 H318 ' RIBEZSH KB K HIFE336
BADBABTFZERMAT  THAL( AR
AIEEAEBTBAERIN EMERAREE
FAEARARBEBITRAS% A L2 -

Number of
shares held or
attributable Percentage
EEREN of shareholding
Name of interested party EEREZEER B EE ERBDL
China Electronics Corporation  China Electronics Corporation 812,500,000 40.03%
(BVI) Holdings Company (BVI) Holdings Company
Limited (“CEC (BVI)") Limited ([ CEC (BVI)])
Huada Semiconductor (Note 1) ZERFEEE (f1221) 1,206,180,000 59.42%
CEC (Note 2) PEEFER (A:22) 1,206,180,000 59.42%
Notes: Hrat -

(1) Huada Semiconductor holds 100% equity interest in CEC (BVI).
Pursuant to the SFO, Huada Semiconductor is deemed to be
interested in the 812,500,000 shares of the Company held by
CEC (BVI).

(2) CEC holds 100% equity interest in Huada Semiconductor.
Pursuant to the SFO, CEC is deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company held by Huada Semiconductor. The
Board regards CEC, a state-owned enterprise established under
the laws of the PRC, as being the ultimate holding company of
the Company.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position
in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2023, the
Company had not been notified of any other interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

(1)  FEARFEEEFFHCEC BVI)Z100%MX % - RIEE 5 &
BI&AF iéﬁ#f:,%”%&ﬁf%hﬁ&c BVNFTIFE 2 AR
7]812,500,000f% f% 15 2 #E S °

@ £ B8 A8 82100981 - IRISIT S

=S y EFREREAFAERNLBREMT
ZIK’AETH%"Z%E% é?@ﬁﬁFl@%%l(ﬁf
) ( B BARAZREERA

FrB LB R RARRIRMD 2R -

B EIREESN - R2023F12 8318 A EE
KEMSHITMEMALTEELRDF RN KA
R AREENIBIEE 5 KB E G FE336158E
GrzERMAZERIAR -
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares and the
Company had not redeemed any of its shares during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the aggregate
sales attributable to the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for 63.6% of the Group’s sales for
the year and sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer accounted for 18.8% of the Group’s sales
for the year. For the year ended 31 December 2023,
the aggregate purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 75.8%
of the Group's purchases for the year and purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier accounted
for 36.4% of the Group's purchases for the year.

To the best knowledge of the Board, CEC is not a
beneficial owner of the five largest customers and is the
beneficial owner of one of the five largest suppliers of
the Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective close associates or any shareholder (which
to the best knowledge of the Board owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or
suppliers.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2023 or
subsisted at 31 December 2023.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme
of the Group are set out in Notes 8 and 33 to the
financial statements.

Report of the Directors
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EEERE

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to
the date of this report, the Company has purchased
and maintained a collective liability insurance policy
covering, among others, all directors of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract, other than employment contracts,
concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the Group’s businesses
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31
December 2023.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and to the best knowledge of the
Board, at the date of this report, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital are held by the
public and fulfills the requirement under the Listing
Rules.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations amounting
to HK$344,000 (2022: HK$407,000).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board has reviewed the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

BAETRBEMKRX
REE2023F12A31BIEFERBEAREH
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023 have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. PricewaterhouseCoopers shall
retire as auditor of the Company upon the expiration
of its current term of office with effect from the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting.
A resolution for the re-appointment or appointment
of auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. If it is intended
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to
appoint an auditor other than the retiring auditor, an
announcement in relation to the proposed change of
auditor pursuant to Rule 13.51(4) of the Listing Rules
will be made as soon as practicable by the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Haidong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024

Report of the Directors
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

_E
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of China Electronics Huada
Technology Company Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China
Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 59 to 143, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2023;

e  the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year then ended;

e  the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
comprising material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

50 China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2023



Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2023,
and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are

summarised as follows:

o Provision for expected credit losses of trade

receivables
° Provision for inventories

Kengtidit Matter
EiTEE

Provision for expected credit losses of trade
receivables

EZRENI BB EEERER

Refer to notes 2.8 and 18 (b) to the consolidated
financial statements.
B2HRE M BmEME2.8 &M FE18(b)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s gross balance
of trade receivables was HK$377,663,000, against
which a provision for expected credit losses of
HK$62,671,000 was made

M20235F12A318 - E5EESRBRKFKEBERES
%EZ%377,663,0005%71: TYEHRBEHEEEERE B
62,671,000% 7T °

Provision for expected credit losses of trade
receivables reflects the management’s best estimate
to determine the expected credit losses. The estimate
requires significant management judgments in
determining the estimation method, in making
assumptions about the risk of default and expected
credit loss rates and in selecting data inputs for
calculating the expected credit loss provision.
BRWHIBZ AR EEEREERNEREETR
HEEBRNKERE -ZHEFTEEEEELERX
#U%ﬁ BREYGENTE  BRENRRKEHREE
Fﬂaifﬁ““ﬁ’]ﬁﬁ#ﬂ%ﬂx& TR EE B R EERT
B A BUR -

BPIERFPREAMNNBERBFSAMBANT

. B2 REFATRREEERRE

. FERE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
BMNE N EERARETSE

Our procedures in relation to the provision for
expected credit losses of trade receivables included
the following:

FH B 5 EW IR TE RS BT8R B 6 BB 12 /7 67 -

e We obtained an understanding of the
management’s internal control and assessment
process of provision for expected credit losses
of trade receivables and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias.
BMPTHTEEEHESRKWRIENEREE
B 1R R e AE R A BRI R BT R AR - LR B
ZRMT T ETENEE R EMERRREEE
BI7KSF - e - EEIE - B2EUARERER
ME SRR - fHE TEXRERNESRR -

e  We evaluated and tested the key controls over
the management’s estimation of the provision
for expected credit losses of trade receivables.
BAAEHEIAIE TR B E G E 5 EKKIE
MIREE SRR AR -
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it Matter
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The assessment of expected credit loss provision was
an area of focus for us given the inherent risk due to
uncertainties and significant management judgments
involved in estimating the expected credit loss.
BHREEFERERKMEAINGE  RESMEER

HEERRBEETERTRERZR S REAREEE
1Eﬁ§$ﬁ’]l“ﬁﬂ R o
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
BHNEST N REEERETSER

J We involved our internal modelling expert
in assessing and testing the method,
assumptions and data used in estimating
the provision for expected credit losses by
performing procedures include (1) assessing
the appropriateness of the expected credit loss
provisioning model, including the grouping
of customers based on their shared credit risk
characteristics in determining the respective
historical loss rates, (2) testing, on a sample
basis, the accuracy of the aging profile of
trade receivables at the year-end to supporting
documents, (3) evaluating the estimation
method used in the context of the applicable
financial reporting framework, (4) testing
the significant data inputs and challenging
assumptions (including the current conditions
and future forecast of macroeconomic
factors) used by the management to estimate
the expected credit losses, (5) testing the
mathematical accuracy of calculation of the
expected credit losses.
EABRBEERNGET - JARITTRRFA
&%I/HIJEEKTﬁ“’ﬁﬁﬂﬁgéﬂaﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁE’JH
% RENEUE - HEARR TR ()FHATERE
f)&ﬂ@ﬁé‘{%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁ%ﬂ”mmmIE BIETHE
EEHERELEBRAXENEFL DA 2)AME
ARABEFRE HRUGIARKNEBERZ X
FExx - (B)HHEELFHE’JQMM&iff[ H
RoEE 5 AFAEERERAREAEDRE
E)’Eﬂﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ’]i%%ﬁﬁ’]%)\ I 7R 2%
(BREYZELERZNE AR RARIMTE
i‘EI“ﬁIJ)ﬁ%,IE?Eﬁ%T%E GYAHAEREEBRE
BETTHE R RN

Based on the above, we considered that
management’s judgments and assumptions applied
in the assessment of provision for expected credit
losses of trade receivables were supportable by the
evidence obtained and procedures performed.
ERULERNET  EERNEAIBEHAITE
i%&.ﬂﬁ%f%ﬁllﬁz RIAMTREEEEEREPAE
&Y F i K R 2%
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Provision for inventories

FREREE

Refer to notes 2.8 and 19 to the consolidated
fmanoal statements.

A2 M mR M 2.8 RMIEE19 -

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
the Group's inventories was HK$848,621,000, where
a provision for inventories of HK$197,899,000 was
recognised in the cost of sales for the year ended 31
December 2023.

M2023FE12 8318 - ,\%IT,\EEE%%EJ%
848,621, ooo/%%sn I ;252023¢1zﬂ31 B 1k
FERN BEEECHRAHERAIANTGTEREA

197,899,000/%712 ¥

Finished goods and work in progress are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
estimation of provision for inventories involves
significant management judgments based on
consideration of key factors such as assessment of
the physical condition of the inventories, future sales
projection, and the estimation of the net realisable
value of the inventories.

ERMmMEERIZKA A Z I8 FE R EIEET

T FEREGNFERREEEOREMGEHE - 258
m R EREEN S AHE - EHES YRR T

it RIRHERA R FER B FENEE -

The assessment of provision for inventories was an
area of focus for us given the inherent risk due to
uncertainties and significant management judgments
involved in estimating the provision.
FEEGHESEMABINGE  RESKREFERE
gﬁ?ﬂaT\ﬁEE%&iﬁ&iﬁ%fi@fﬁﬁ&im

& g o
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
BHNEST R EERETSEER

Our procedures in relation to the provision for
inventories included the following:

I FERENIEEREFEH5

e We obtained an understanding of the
management’s internal control and assessment
process of provision for inventories and
assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias.

DA TRETEREEBET S & ERRRRBIEH

KFHERE - WiBiBE E G T EE EANIEE
fﬂﬁfﬁlﬁﬂﬁﬁ?%7}<¥ NEREN - T8

IEE ‘‘‘‘‘‘ FEAREEERANSRGE  FHETEX

i&ﬁ’]l*ﬁﬂﬁ s

e We evaluated and tested the key controls over
the management’s estimation of the provision
for inventories.
%Q;%%Iﬂﬂﬁ?E%E’é%ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬂ?%ﬁ%%%

|

o We assessed and tested the method, assumptions
and data used in estimating the provision for
inventories by performing procedures include (1)
observing physical condition of inventories, on
a sample basis, during attendance of inventory
count by management to identify slow moving,
damaged, or obsolete inventories, and inquiring
of management as to whether a provision
had been provided for those inventories, (2)
testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the
aging profile of inventories at the year-end
to supporting documents, (3) evaluating the
estimation method used in the context of the
applicable financial reporting framework, (4)
testing the significant data inputs and challenging
assumptions (including the determination of the
net realisable value of the inventories) used by
the management to estimate the provision, (5)
testing, on a sample basis, the mathematical
accuracy of calculation of the provision for

inventories.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all
of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
BHNEST N REEERETSER

Based on the above, we considered that
management’s judgments and assumptions applied
in the assessment of provision for inventories
were supportable by the evidence obtained and
procedures performed.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Pai Hung On, Hendry.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2024

. RESEANERAXBEINMBESE
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BREZFRER -ZMEEEEEEAN
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BMBERAFAFZESERIER SARMEHE
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BB EELBEBNTTE SRR B IEE o

EBFZERENFET  RMABEEHLS
AHARGAVBREANBARSER AME
P RAER At IR o B BIED S S L
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEmR

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE

2023 2070,
2023%F 20224
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FHETT
Revenue WA 5 3,019,120 2,483,114
Cost of sales & AR 7 (1,721,057) (1,370,869)
Gross profit ER 1,298,063 1,112,245
Other income H g A 6 69,050 45,416
Selling and marketing costs HE MG HEEK A 7 (79,364) (76,241)
Administrative expenses THRA X 7 (532,765) (457,704)
Net reversal of impairment losses B 5 I H A e WK IE R (B
on trade and other receivables B8 F # O 18 2,273 8,229
Operating profit EEER 757,257 631,945
Finance income BE WA 9 21,829 14,060
Finance costs B & B AR 9 (42,594) (39,470)
Finance costs — net REKA - F5E 9 (20,765) (25,410)
Share of result of an associate FEAL —EHE = N R EE 17 173 1,307
Profit before taxation BR B A % A 736,665 607,842
Taxation 18 10 (49,300) (74,955)
Profit for the year REE R 687,365 532,887
Profit for the year attributable to: ZFERFEER :
Owners of the Company RKAFIEREEE 686,431 531,431
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR P 2 934 1,456
687,365 532,887
Proposed dividend EERE 11 213,137 162,390
HK cents HK cents
Al il
Basic earnings per share BRELREF 12 33.82 26.18
FEEFEANKERLT 2023FF3R 59




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AEEERER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A8318LLEE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Profit for the year REEHEF 687,365 532,887
Other comprehensive income for AEEHRHEERN
the year, net of taxation: Hit 2 HEUE -
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified HgrgeENBE R T
to profit or loss: S EERIEE -
Exchange differences on translation of REVBHRED
financial statements PE W =% (20,170) (57,914)
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified Hi1& T g E 2 58 = i 7
to profit or loss: HEERIER -
Exchange differences on translation of BMERQ R BERKD
financial statements of the Company ME W E R (11,267) (57,719)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZ2HEWNFZHALE 655,928 417,254
Total comprehensive income for the year AFE2HIKNHZAE
attributable to: EERN:
Owners of the Company AR AESE 655,323 416,303
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A 2 605 951
655,928 417,254
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

= A A
SAHBRRE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
20239128318 2022%12A31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 FHET FEBTT
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 13 37,146 44,026
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 10,212 33,124
Investment properties BREME 15 48,556 49,199
Intangible assets B EE 16 64,641 23,410
Investments in associates REERRIRE 17 16,216 16,514
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H A0 e W RIE 18 157,813 200,985
Deferred tax assets RIEHIAEE 10 71,389 44,948
Time deposits EHER 21 706,230 89,559
1,112,203 501,765
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 848,621 884,693
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E R 18 574,285 731,544
Restricted cash SIRHIIRE 20 1 33,859
Time deposits EHTE R 21 684,161 732,141
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEEY 20 1,107,515 1,172,748
3,214,583 3,554,985
Total assets EEHAE 4,326,786 4,056,750
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

=AN b Q)
eI RR
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
20239128318 2022%12A31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
et TR FBTT
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EzRkEE
Equity attributable to owners BERELT
of the Company EEEEER
Share capital and premium & 2N K 5 (B 22 225,454 225,454
Reserves i (739,966) (546,468)
Retained earnings RE % A 2,633,070 1,946,639
2,118,558 1,625,625
Non-controlling interests IR R 27,663 27,058
Total equity R 2,146,221 1,652,683
Liabilities =
Non-current liabilities F¥RBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 23 4,459 11,795
Trade and other payables B 5 R H e 5B 24 371,171 319,546
Deferred tax liabilities RLERIAEE 10 44,161 33,789
Contract liabilities AHEE 5 6,123 22,700
425,914 387,830
Current liabilities REAE
Deferred government grants EEB T B 25 57,472 51,046
Contract liabilities AHEE 5 386,633 383,516
Trade and other payables B 5 R H NI 24 806,139 942,128
Bank and other borrowings BIREMEE 26 496,568 615,715
Lease liabilities HEERE 23 7,785 23,768
Income tax payable & PR A5 B 5k 18 54 64
1,754,651 2,016,237
Total liabilities EEHAE 2,180,565 2,404,067
Total equity and liabilities kB ELAHE 4,326,786 4,056,750

The financial statements on pages 59 to 143 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors (the “Board”) on 28 March 2024 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Xu Haidong /&%

Director %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREER

Attributable to owners of the Company

BRNRLAREREE
Property Non-

Share Share Surplus  Translation  revaluation Merger Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings Total interests equity
B RiE BRER EXRE NRERGR Elic( ] Atk REEA B8 FERER EREE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
ThL Th ThL ThT ThL ThL ThT Thn ThL ThL ThL

(Note 22) Note22) (Note (3))

Waz) W) (WEe)
At 1 January 2022 HuNE1R18 20,29 205,155 37,705 89,565 16,835 (743.127) 206,250 1,415,208 1,247,890 26,107 1213997
Total comprehensive income 2kELE - - = (115,128) - = = 531,431 416,303 951 41725
Payment of dividend Hiike - - - - - - (38,568) - (38,568) - (38,568)
At 31 December 2022 025123318 20,299 205,155 37,705 (25,563) 16,835 (743.127) 167,682 1,946,639 1,625,625 27,058 1,652,683
At 1 January 2023 HBE1A1A 20,299 205,155 37,705 (25,563) 16,835 (13.121) 167,682 1,946,639 1,625,625 27,058 1,652,683
Total comprefensive income 2kELE - - - (31,108) - - - 686,431 655,323 605 655,928
Payment of diidend KA - - - - - - (1623%) - (1623%) - (1623%)
At 31 December 2023 HNDBENANA 20,299 205,155 37,705 (56,671) 16,835 (13.12) 5292 2,633,010 2,118,558 21,663 2,146,221
(@)  Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, a (@) REBBETFBREERESR ARATRFEZHBRARN

portion of the profits of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries has
been transferred to the enterprise expansion fund and reserve

fund (the “Surplus reserve”) which are restricted as to use.

MOGNCHBERAEIRNCEXERESRFERESD
(TEHBEEDA -

FEREFTEARNEBRAT 2023FFIH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLFE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Ht it FERT FAETT
Cash flows from operating EETHZRERE
activities
Cash flows generated from LEEECHERE
operations 27 978,178 1,026,306
Interest paid S F B (23,191) (36,696)
Income tax paid XA ET SRR (65,638) (30,734)
Net cash flows generated from LBERBELE
operating activities ZHREeREFE 889,349 958,876
Cash flows from investing RETZHZRERE
activities
Interest received W B A B 33,291 19,518
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  BEKRKE
equipment, and intangible assets MEEEE (86,182) (35,727)
Proceeds from disposal of property, BEEW% - BE &
plant and equipment KBRS RIE 2 465
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERARBEF AR
assets at fair value through TRVEEFSHRIE
profit or loss - 10,362
Increase in time deposits TE 8315 3R 2 38 A0 (584,328) (167,655)
Dividends received W ER AR 2 234 -
Net cash flows used in investing ‘EEBFTH
activities ZBREeREFRE (636,983) (173,037)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLFE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Cash flows from financing METHZ2RERE
activities
Proceeds from bank and RIT R EMEERTEFHIA
other borrowings - 570,493
Repayment of bank and BEBITREMBEES
other borrowings (111,089) (570,493)
Dividend paid XTI E (162,390) (38,568)
Principal portion of lease payments HENRKEIHD (23,340) (25,101)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEEBAZ
REeMEER (296,819) (63,669)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BeRBESZEEY
and cash equivalents OB 4) /S (44,453) 722,170
Effect of exchange rate changes EXEH o8 (20,780) (67,354)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNzHeRREEEY
beginning of the year 1,172,748 517,932
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZBEERESEEY
end of the year 1,107,515 1,172,748
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited
(the "Company”) is incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and continued in Bermuda with limited liability. The
Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The ultimate holding company of the Company is
China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC"), which
is established in the People’s Republic of China (the
HRRI@)

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the design and sale of
integrated circuit chips.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

1. — & H

PEHEFEARMBEBERAA(TARR] &—
MR HEHEEFMAKY TREREEEBELE
WERBEEAR - ARAIRNEBBHERS
FIERAR LM ARQAAMFEMHEEMU A
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda °

ARBIZBEERARATHETEEEXEH
BERAR(FEEFEE]D (—ERFEARK
MBI (THRBE DRI ZEE) °

7,

ARRIREMBRAR(AEEDNEEXHES
X E B RS

SHZRETREE -

@ s

RRAEAI  REAPBRERIABITTIIR

2. EXRSHHEBE

RERGAMBRRARAN T Z S BERET
MmN RRAAEAN HEFBRR-—BEERERAR
FMIEZ2MIFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a) Compliance with HKFRSs, HKASs,
Interpretations and Listing Rules

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with all applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of investment properties and certain
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs, HKASs and Interpretations
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

2. EXRSTHHRBEGE)

2.1 REEE

(a) NEBBNBEHEER  BEEZER
a2BR_LmAA

REMBBRRIIBEEEEHMAGERMHZHE
EREEVWBREEA ((EBMBHREER])
e ([FEEEL]) hREMRE -
ZEFAVBRRNETEERARSIMEARA
Al EMARR (T EMARR]) BB R REDIZ
FIEERBBERE - AW BRREIRE LKA
FHRERE URRENERE TRAAEFA
BadBEE (RAAEIR) WEMRMIELET -

MENEBEYHBRESEN  BESHENR
BOREMBHMRAERE TRBSE -
BEEAERAASENS A BRBIES NATTES
HIE - BAGRAMBHRERMN S P M= E H L8
MMNEE S REERBNRKR LM &
ARE MR M AR W -

it o Y

/
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations

In the current year, the Group has adopted for the first
time of all the new or amended HKFRSs and HKASs,
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants that are relevant to the
Group's operations and effective for the accounting
period beginning on 1 January 2023. The adoption of
these new or amended standards and interpretations
had no material effect on the results and financial
position of the Group and/or disclosures set out in the
consolidated financial statements.

The following amendments to standards that are
relevant to the operation of the Group have been
issued but are not effective for the accounting period
beginning on 1 January 2023 and have not been early
adopted:

HKAS 1 (amendments) Classification of liabilities as current
or non-current (effective from 1
January 2024)
HKAS 1 (amendments)  Non-current liabilities with
covenants (effective from
1 January 2024)
Lease liability in sale and leaseback
(effective from 1 January 2024)

HKAS 16
(amendments)

Management anticipates that the adoption of the
above amendments to standards will have no material
effect on the results and financial position of the
Group.

2. EXRSTHEHRBEGE)

21 RwUEE(E)

(b) Fral ER| - EAIEET R 2 FE

AEERAFECEHERXRANBTE ST ASHMRA
o 2 PR RN SR B R A5 A B8 ) X20234F1 A1H
2 BT HIRARZ AT HNRIERT 2 BBMBH
SREAMFB G ER - RBRE - RAZFHF]
HBIERT 2 ERI N2 - WAKEZ X8 MK
RRAR SR a B mRAE 2 WELEEKR

B/ 488
A

DEMEMARNR2023F1 B1BBB Z S5 EIR 4
MBWARWIRERN Z BAEBE XK AR 2 EL|
BT -

BB G ERIF 15 BEaEIBEARD
1&3) ;K IERE (H2024
F1R1B AR
B EAEI5R MAERLNNIERBE
1B3T) & (B2024%F
1A1B#BER)
BB G ERAF 165 AR
ZHD) HEAE (82024

F1A1BERER)

BEERMRA LA AT H A RE A XA R
MBRRALBERTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

Buildings and leasehold ~ 5-20 years

improvements (or over the lease term,
whichever is shorter)
— Plant and machinery 3-5 years
— Motor vehicles 5-10 years
— Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

2.3 Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied by the
Group. Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of the
definition of an investment property is met. In such
cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted for
as if they were finance leases.

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and, where
applicable, borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each
reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for
any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not available,
the Group uses alternative valuation methods such
as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Investment property that is
being redeveloped for continuing use as investment
property or for which the market has become less active
continues to be measured at fair value. Changes in fair
values are recognised within “other income” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2. EXRSTHHRBEGE)

22 YE- -BERRE

ME - BENRRBIITETIANERETE  RE
AP ERFRIERAL  BEYE  BERE

B2 Estr EREHNT

- BFLHEEYME S5ZE20% @ sKHAFH
#2iE (ABEE A%)

- WENEE 3ZE54F

- B 5ZE 104

- BEMEEE 3FE54F

23 BREYHE

REYE FT2HHEEETEK KERERE
HATH & W 2t K 1R /3 B AN IR (B o R & 5% 18 [R) B 3
FARAREEER N EREVENMEES
SEMETHNIHERREMEAR - ELIFER
T AHENEEHEROREHEARK-

BREWMEBVIZRAINE - BREABNIZHHA
K (AER) BERA - i fIERR - REWE
BAREIR  RAEEBINEERNREER
TEHBENRRAME - AEDNREBEERTS
BRTE  UnEREENMEE -« 1A IE
HUBREE - WAEEDNZZERN  AEERA
H G E % flana N E R TS5 H ER K
NIRREREFRD  -ERSEREREREYMELZ
REWE  AEMSERETRIREMFES
BRAREFE AAEBEEHBESEBARAN
[E A A ] R EER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & £2023F 12 A31H L F/E

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.3 Investment properties (Cont’d)

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in
light of current market conditions. The fair value also
reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that could
be expected in respect of the property.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes. Property that is
under construction or development for future use
as investment property is classified as investment
property under construction. Where fair value of
investment properties under construction is not reliably
measurable, the property is measured at cost until the
earlier of the date construction is completed or the date
at which fair value becomes reliably measurable.

2. EXRSTHEHRBEGE)

23 REWE(E

BREWMEZARERR(ETEE)RERAHEE
ZHEEWARBRITTABRZRKES WA -
AAETRBR  EEUEETZYERANEMA
BEMmA -

BEZHERBEZKARBEREBH ZRRE
EMEAGRAEATRERARSKEIL B LR SRR
AER TEHABEZREE - IBEHEMERE
RRERAEEEE 2MBRHBARGEBER
XM

W—HRENERRERYE  AEAREDER
ME - -BENMRE ERESBEERZARE
AREFTENMERAEKAN - RIEEZHHERSP
URBREREVERAENDE B BESER
BREYME - EERREWMEZ AR BERER SE
ER ZWESURKESE BEEVFREKZ
B AR EEAASHECANMEZRES
v dlnk
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.3 Investment properties (Cont’d)

If an item of owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying
amount and the fair value of this item at the date of
transfer is recognised as a revaluation. The resulting
increase in the carrying amount is recognised in other
comprehensive income and as increases in property
revaluation reserve within equity. However, if a fair
value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the
gain is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, and the remaining part of the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and as
increases in property revaluation reserve within equity.
Decreases in fair value of the investment property
against the previous carrying amount are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss for any decrease in
excess of the amount included in revaluation surplus for
that investment property.

2.4 Intangible assets

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. These costs are amortised
over their estimated useful lives of one to five years.

2.5 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values
where there is a reasonable assurance that the
government grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. Government grant
relating to an asset is included in non-current liabilities,
which is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected
useful life of the related asset. Government grant
relating to an expense item is deferred and recognised
as income in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss over the period necessary to match with the cost
that it is intended to compensate.

2. EXRSTHHRBEGE)

23 REWX(E

HW—HEANEANEREMKRREDE - %
AYMEZEREERNEREERZARBEZE
BERAEM  BMELZIRAEEREINNEM
EEWmERLIBNERF CDEEMEFHE - R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.6 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for the eligible employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
scheme, the assets of which are held in separate trustee
— administered funds. The Group’s contributions to MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred.

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
have to make contributions to staff retirement scheme
managed by local government authorities in accordance
with the relevant rules and regulations. Contributions
to these schemes are expensed as incurred. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions.

Any forfeited contributions in respect of unvested
benefits of resigned employees will not be used to
reduce the Group's contributions.

(b) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonuses is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation for payment of bonus as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.7 Revenue recognition

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. When the consideration
in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount
of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. Revenue from
transferring of goods or services is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on acceptance of the goods by
customers or where contract provides a product quality
inspection time period, the product quality inspection
time period has lapsed. The Group considers that the
control of asset is transferred to the customer at the
end of the quality inspection time period.

(b) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods
or services to a customer for which the Group has
received a consideration (or an amount of consideration
that is due) from the customer. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under
the contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.7 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
(c) Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies

(a) Consolidation
(i) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity.

The subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year will be included in the consolidated financial
statements from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal (except for
acquisition of subsidiaries under common control
which are accounted for using the principles of merger
accounting), as appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(a) Consolidation (Cont’d)
(i) Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Apart from the application of merger accounting
on common control combination, the acquisition
method of accounting is used to account for business
combination by the Group. The consideration
transferred for an acquisition is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement. Any
contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Acquisition-related
transaction costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(a) Consolidation (Cont’d)
(i) Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

The excess of the aggregate of consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the aggregate of consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree is less than
the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses in the Company’s
statement of financial position. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company in the
Company'’s statement of profit or loss to the extent of
dividend received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(a) Consolidation (Cont’d)

(i) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

(iii) Common control combination

Merger accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries under common control by the
Group.

Under merger accounting, the consolidated financial
statements incorporate the financial statements of
the combining entities or businesses in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the control of
the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are combined using the existing book values from
the controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is
recognised in consideration for goodwill or excess of
acquirers’ interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(a) Consolidation (Cont’d)
(iii) Common control combination (Cont’d)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss includes
the results of each of the combining entities or
businesses from the earliest date presented or since the
date when the combining entities or businesses first
came under common control, whichever is shorter and
regardless of the effective date of the common control
combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the previous statement of
financial position dates or when they first came under
common control, whichever is shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions between
combining entities or businesses are eliminated on
consolidation.

Transaction costs, including professional fees,
registration fees, costs of furnishing information to
shareholders, costs or losses incurred in combining
operations of the previously separate businesses, etc.,
incurred in relation to the common control combination
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

The difference between the share capital of entities
combined and the fair value of consideration paid has
been recorded in the merger reserve in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(a) Consolidation (Cont’d)
(iv) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investment in associate is
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share
of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group’s investment in an associate
includes goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate,
any difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(a) Consolidation (Cont’d)
(iv) Associates (Cont’d)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
o “share of result of associates” in the statement of
profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(b) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) while the functional
currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB"). The
Company has adopted HK$ as its presentation currency
because the management considered it is more
beneficial to the users of the consolidated financial
statements.

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”).

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(b) Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)
(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

- income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(c) Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
statement of financial position date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals or retirement are
determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised within
“other income” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Construction in progress represents the direct
costs of construction incurred in property less any
impairment losses. No provision for depreciation is
made on construction in progress until such time that
the relevant assets are completed and available for
use. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(d) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows which are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each statement
of financial position date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

(e) Financial assets

(i) Classification

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value

through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(e) Financial assets (Cont’d)
(i) Classification (Cont’d)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost
if both of the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective of holding financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective of both holding
financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and selling.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(e) Financial assets (Cont’d)
(i) Classification (Cont’d)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to
be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income, as
described above, debt instruments may be designated
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition
if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(e) Financial assets (Cont’d)
(i) Recognition and derecognition

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.
Trade receivables are measured at the transaction price
determined in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and either the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the financial asset or the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the financial asset, but has transferred
control of the financial asset.

2. EXRSTHHRBEGE)

28 HMEBEEASHBEME#F

(e) THEE (&)
(ii) fE R M 48 L AR

RBNERR > SREENBIRREBREEN
BHRERERELRAESEEEZSEREEDN
EBENA -BRABBARMEAEAKDIAEES
REMTHABREAREANBN R EZEHE
WoRIESN - REBIR R AAENE (KE®E
EYIFRAABEFARS) RHUAFEEHE
E-BZRUEFBCRE AN WARERIFME
LBREENR HERTE -

RETREERBHAASIZIABFAEME
BB RETHERGE  FELERR/INRE
RARBERESFENRERE

AREEECMEENEHENEENMERR
TRHEENELRSRE - EHEAERTERSR
ERCKBUEENReRE HLESREE -
EMERE

UG LERERBBPEENEREENR S
BHR XH5BRAKEAZBEIHEEEY
BH-mZ LARERIKBMNEERAREM ISR
AREBHRTLZEEARKEEZSREESR
BE-EeRMBEENRBACRENENERXCHE
FHASEEERTHEENBRIDERKE
BHKGHAFRETESZNRESTBREENBK
R R EE SRS REELER &
IHEREREE -

FEETEANKERAA 202355HK 87



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(e) Financial assets (Cont’d)
(iii) Subsequent measurement
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled
to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(e) Financial assets (Cont’d)
(iv) Impairment

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12 month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost
or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(e) Financial assets (Cont’d)
(iv) Impairment (Cont’d)
General approach (Cont’d)

The Group may consider a financial asset is
credit-impaired when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs.

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 — Financial instruments that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(e) Financial assets (Cont’d)
(iv) Impairment (Cont’d)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

(f) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables, and bank and other borrowings.

(i) Recognition and derecognition

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(f) Financial liabilities (Cont’d)
(i) Subsequent measurement
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, bank and other borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

(iii) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(9) Inventories

Finished goods and work in progress are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted-average method. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
design costs, raw materials, direct labour, manufacturing
cost of subcontractors, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less applicable variable selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
short-term time deposits with banks and other
financial institutions and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of 3 months or less.

(i) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
share options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

() Current and deferred taxation

The taxation expense comprises current and deferred
taxation. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or equity.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

() Current and deferred taxation (Cont’d)
(i) Deferred taxation differences
Inside basis differences

Deferred taxation is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred taxation is not recognised
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or a liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Deferred taxation is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the statement of financial
position date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

() Current and deferred taxation (Cont’d)
(i) Deferred taxation differences (Cont’d)
Outside basis differences

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal of the
temporary difference for associates. Only when there is
an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability
to control the reversal of the temporary difference in
the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation
to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to
the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable
profit available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

(iii) Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & £2023F 12 A31H L F/E

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(k) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow of resources will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow of resources with
respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

() Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it
is not probable that outflow of resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not provided for as a provision
but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow of
resources occurs so that the outflow is probable, they
will then be recognised as a provision.

2. EXRSTHEHRBEGE)

28 HMEBEEEASHTHREME (£)

(k) 1

AEERCHRENSHMAZRERGHEEX
HEEMT: REAEFSENHERAENEHER
EREREKA SMAFHER THRRBEE - TR
KEEB BRI

WMELZEBUEE REFTEREMNANEE
R RIFEREZETRNERERE - BIEER—
AEEEAMEamERX—EHE M HERA
BEMEARIR - (7R RERR RS -

BREXRATRANXTRBRFTELS BB TN
XHREFE  ZMNERREFHHEH S ERH
BEMNEBAE TR TR o BE R mE
M BFER ST B R -

) ZBERIE

SERBEDRCHEENEHMAELELNEE -
TERTFEREOHE-—ANZHIFEAKRER =
EEFOTARESHFMERELFE - HBRE
HAREHENEHMEENRARE  BEEAR
AEBEROFEMNLERIAKEAISEHERE
EEMNSEMTTHER -

SBRBEL TR REEG  BERMBERRWMES
KE - EERREOAIEERZEME AL
BR HEREREISREE -

96 China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(m) Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(n) Leases
(i) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Unless the
Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated
useful life and the lease term.

2. EXRSTHHRBEGE)

28 HMEBEEASHEERE (&)

(m)  EEAX
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(n) Leases (Cont’d)
(i) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease and are measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable. As the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable,
the Group’ s incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date is used to calculate the present
value of lease payments. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the interest on the leases liabilities and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification or a change in the lease term.

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value asset

For lease with a term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and does not contain a purchase
option (“short-term lease”) and lease of asset that are
considered to be of low value (“lease of low-value
asset”), lease payments are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

2. EXRSTHEHRBEGE)
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(o)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development
costs that are directly attributable to the design and
testing of identifiable and unique software products
are recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software
product so that it will be available for use;

management intends to complete the software
product and use or sell it;

there is an ability to use or sell the software
product;

it can be demonstrated how the software product
will generate probable future economic benefits;

adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development of the software
product are available; and

the expenditure attributable to the software
product during its development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of
the software product cost includes employee costs for
software development and an appropriate portion of
relevant overheads. Costs associated with maintaining
computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Summary of other potentially
material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(o) Research and development costs (Cont’d)

Other development costs that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as
assets are amortised using straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, which does not exceed three years.

(p) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or the Board, where appropriate.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's operations expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risks of the Group occurred due
to the fact that the Group had some business activities
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group’s
business activities are primarily exposed to foreign
exchange risk in respect of exchange rate changes of
Hong Kong dollars against RMB. Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities that are denominated in
a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency. In
addition, the conversion of RMB into foreign currencies
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

2. EXRSTHEHRBEGE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

To manage foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses forward contracts, when
appropriate, to hedge anticipated cash flows in major
foreign currencies.

If Hong Kong dollars had strengthened/weakened by
5% against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit before taxation for the year ended 31
December 2023 would have been HK$1,160,000 lower/
higher (2022: HK$228,000 lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains or losses on translation
of Hong Kong dollars denominated cash and cash
equivalents.

As less than 10% of the Group's foreign currency
transactions are denominated in other foreign
currencies, the Board is of the view that foreign
exchange risk in relation to transactions denominated
in other foreign currencies is low. Therefore, no
sensitivity analysis for these currencies is presented.

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from interest-bearing
assets such as deposits held in banks and other
financial institutions. The average interest rate of
deposits held in banks and other financial institutions
at 31 December 2023 was 2.4% (2022: 2.5%) per
annum. Any change in the interest rate from time to
time is not considered to have a significant impact on
the Group’s performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & £2023F 12 A31H L F/E

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Cont’d)

In addition, the Group’s interest rate risk which
affects its results and cash flows also arises from
interest-bearing liabilities such as bank and other
borrowings. The bank and other borrowings were at
fixed rates and exposed the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, all the
Group’s bank and other borrowings were borrowed at
fixed interest rates.

(c) Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations at the end of each reporting period in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets net of loss
allowance as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk,
management of the Group has formulated a defined
credit policy and delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other control procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

At 31 December 2023, the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment of trade receivables measured
at amortised cost. See Note 18 for the measurement
of ECLs and impairment provision of trade receivables.
For financial assets such as trade receivables measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income,
other receivables, time deposits, and cash and cash
equivalents, they are classified within stage 1 for
measurement of ECLs as there is no significant increase

in credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(d) Liquidity risk

The Group adopts prudent liquidity risk management,
including maintaining sufficient working capital, the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed borrowing facilities and the ability to close
out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, the Group maintains flexibility
in funding by ensuring that sufficient committed
borrowing facilities are available.

Details of the Group’s financial liabilities by maturity
groupings analysed based on the remaining period
at the statement of financial position date to the
contractual maturity date are set out below. The
amounts disclosed in the table are based on the
contractual undiscounted cash flows of the financial
liabilities.

3. U¥REREREGE)

3.1 HBEBREERE)
(@)  EBELEE

AEERABBEZRDECRRER  BREER
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31 December 2023

2023F 128318
More than More than
1 year but 2 years but
less than less than
2 years 5 years
Within 1year —&LIE{E ZERER Total
—Fr FHB=F FRBRF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TR
Bank and other borrowings RIOREMEE 511,136 - - 511,136
Lease liabilities HEBE 8,035 4,922 220 13,177
Trade and other payables B 5 R E R FE
(excluding salary and welfare (TEERMNFHENEH
payables and other taxes RE A FE(TFIR)
payables) 717,663 278,989 110,348 1,107,000
1,236,834 283,911 110,568 1,631,313
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. WMBERERZ)
(Cont’d)
3.1  Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 31 HMEERBEZEZ)
() Liquidity risk (Cont’d) (d) HEET R (&)
31 December 2022
20224128318
More than More than
1 year but 2 years but
less than less than
2 years 5 years
Within 1 year — —% L F{B ZHFER Total
—FR  TERAE-F THARE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET TAET ThET
Bank and other borrowings BIREMEE 634,157 < = 634,157
Lease liabilities HEBE 24,072 7,559 4,790 36,421
Trade and other payables B 5 R E e~ 508
(excluding salary and welfare (TRERMNFH2MEH
payables and other taxes REA EMFIE)
payables) 843,423 18,499 350,370 1,212,292
1,501,652 26,058 355,160 1,882,870
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EBEXERBERE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The

Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior

years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,

AEBERBHEEANBRASE 2 BEREAFHE
WEBBLEBRERERRERITAA
HRRAOR - NEBEEBRBRFEUANFE
— 3o

AEBEZENGEBBRER (BRERITREME

which includes bank and other borrowings, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.2 Capital risk management (Cont’d)

The Group monitors capital risk using a gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and time
deposits. Total capital is calculated as equity, as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position, plus
net debt.

The calculation of the Group's gearing ratios were
based on the following data:

3. U¥REREREGE)

32 ¥(XERERE)

AEERAEAABLEREREARRAR ° IR
TYABE R R ABE N E - BFFRIZE
ERBERRELRSEEY  IRBIRSMNE DR
FRAE - ERBRELGAUWBIRRNKRMAINTZ
BmINERFEE -

AEE YRS ELETRE TIIBEE :

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FA&ETT

Bank and other borrowings (Note 26) SRITREMEE (Hi+26) 496,568 615,715

Lease liabilities (Note 23) HEBEH7E23) 12,244 35,563
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B -BeRBEEFEYD

(Note 20) (B 5t20) (1,107,515) (1,172,748)

Restricted cash (Note 20) PR IR & (B77£20) 1) (33,859)

Time deposits (Note 21) FEHFER(AZ21) (1,390,391) (821,700)

Net (cash) (BR&)F5 (1,989,095) (1,377,029)

Total equity WA 2,146,221 1,652,683

Total capital BB 2,146,221 1,652,683

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the
Group was in net cash position. In the opinion of the
Board, the Group’s capital risk is not significant.

3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial instruments measured at fair value are
grouped into Levels 1 to 3, based on the degree to
which the fair value is observable, as follows:

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market
for identical assets or liabilities.

M20235F12 4310 }&202212A310 - A& H
BERAREMRR - EFERR/AREEH ZER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.3  Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 fair value measurements that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation methods that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

Movements in the investment properties that are
measured at fair value during the year are set out in
Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the
carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities, including cash and cash equivalents,
time deposits, restricted cash, trade and other
receivables (excluding prepayments) less loss allowance
for impairment, bank and other borrowings, and trade
and other payables (excluding non-financial liabilities)
approximated their respective fair values due to their
short maturities.

3. U¥EREE(E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

4.1 Provision for inventories

In determining the amount of provision required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group
would evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and
compare the carrying amount of inventories to their
respective net realisable value. Judgment is required
in determining such provision. If conditions which
have impact on the net realisable value of inventories
deteriorate, additional provision may be required.

4.2 Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income tax in different
jurisdictions. Estimation and judgment is required in
determining the amount of the provision for income
tax. There are transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences
will impact on the income tax and deferred taxation
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

According to the relevant regulations of the corporate
income tax laws of the PRC, when the Group’s foreign
investment enterprises distribute dividends out of their
profits earned from 1 January 2008 onwards to its
shareholders outside Mainland China, such dividends
are subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%. During
the year, the Board reassessed the dividend policy of
its major foreign investment enterprise, CEC Huada
Electronic Design Co., Ltd (“Huada Electronics”) based
on the Group’s current business plan and financial
position, estimated that certain earnings generated
by Huada Electronics will be eventually distributed out
of Mainland China and as such, deferred tax liabilities
in this respect was provided in the year to the extent
that such earnings are estimated by the Board to be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

No deferred tax liability has been provided by the
Group for the earnings of HK$1,320,765,000 (2022:
HK$1,059,603,000) expected to be retained by the
subsidiaries in the PRC and not to be distributed out of
Mainland China in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & £2023F 12 A31H L F/E

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Cont’d)

4.3 Provision for expected credit losses
of trade receivables

Except for certain trade receivable from customers
with specific credit risk that management adopts an
individual impairment assessment approach, the Group
uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on the past
due days for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e. by geographical
region, product type, customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e. gross
domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

4. FEGHETIRHAEKE)

43 EBEFRVWFEEHFEBERE

BERERETRANEREEEARBEENE
5 B R A ERR BT (577 44N - AEEE
R 50 18 A £ 55 OB PO BB B A AR
B8 B B BB E R S T REEBS M (3
BIE - ESEL  BEEARFR) 2 DAHA
Bt -

BRERESNERASENELBRENE - K
SEBEBHREMEN URABELEEBEL
B M AERERE o filgn - AR TEBI A9 B R (BNEY
NEERE) BERKR—FARIL  EAKER
BAOMERN BEREHXRESRAE - AL R
TH BEXBERIMNENRBEREN - LD
RIRE A ET R B 1L -

HELERINNEHR - TR KM M IEH
EEEE ENERENTHEE -—BEERNG
it BHEEEBRNSBEERRNE(CRIRAN
RERARER - AKRENELEFEBERERK
BEEMRA TR b A BB EAR R AR T E
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Cont’d)

4.4 Fair value of investment properties

During the year, the Board assessed the principal
assumptions underlying management’s estimation
of fair value of investment properties of the Group.
The fair value of investment properties are assessed
annually by an independent qualified professional
valuer. The valuation is principally based on direct
comparison method and income approach by taking
into account the terms of the existing leases and
other external evidence such as current market rents
or sales evidence for similar types of properties in the
locality, and using capitalisation rates or discount rate
that reflect current market expectation for the assets
being valued. The valuation methods and significant
assumptions of investment properties are disclosed in
Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

4.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the statement
of financial position date. Non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions which are on
an arm’s length basis of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management has to estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

4. EEGEIETTRHE(E)

4.4 RBEVELAE

FA EFSTHEEEHAEEREMELR
EfFZEERR -REVFEZAAETFHIH
BUYAREMBEXMGEMELTME ZEEZEER
RERLEBEMEEE  2ZRABAHZHRR
H A SME B - 0O M s BE R AR AL W) 35 2 3R B
MEHERHERD - WEARREAEEZE
EZRRMBSRMcENM L RAWRERGFE -
BEMEZEEREREABRRESRS M HHRE
B FE 15 K EE -

45 FEMEERE

AEERTBMNKBHFEABEFEREER
BREEMRETR - E6PFRERARLENEIE
THEENTEEER - AETRERD - BER
ERE-BREEX BARSELAEUMEEER
BERKEEER - JREEERE QA ER D
EXRABEFERBENRSE - AR EROEX
ANERRABEEARFEENBAHRANBEER
SR BEBEAABERMSERRLEEEMNE
EXRAFE - EEEAEEREER  AfAE
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

(a) Revenue

5. WA K2 E8E %

(@) WA

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHT
Sale of integrated circuit products 556 & K E IS oo
and provision of services 52 AR 75 3,019,120 2,483,114

Most of the revenue of the Group is from sale of
goods, which is recognised at a point in time when
control of the goods is transferred to the customers.

The Group has recognised contract liabilities of
HK$392,756,000 at 31 December 2023 (2022:
HK$406,216,000), of which HK$386,633,000 (2022:
HK$383,516,000) is expected to be recognised as
revenue within one year. The contract liabilities mainly
comprise of prepayments received from customers,
to whom the control of products have not been
transferred. Contract liabilities of HK$383,516,000 at 31
December 2022 was recognised as revenue during the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$34,968,000).

(b) Segment information

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the Board (the chief
operating decision maker) that are used to assess
performance and allocate resources. The Board assesses
the performance of an operating segment based on a
measure of its operating profit excluding unallocated
corporate income and expenses.

The Board considers that the Group’s operations
are operated and managed as a single segment and
accordingly, no segment information is presented.

Revenues of HK$567,437,000 and HK$507,031,000
(2022: HK$460,597,000, HK$450,976,000 and
HK$310,377,000) derived from 2 (2022: 3) external
customers of the Group have exceeded 10% of the
revenue of the Group. Save as disclosed herein, no
other revenue derived from a single external customer
has exceeded 10% of the revenue of the Group.

Nearly 100% of the Group's revenue is attributable to
the market in Mainland China and over 90% of the
Group’s non-current assets are located in Mainland
China, and therefore no geographical information is
presented.

AEBRBOHBRARBHEE® - HIRRE M
R E S ST MR R

ANEBENR2023F12A31B BN ANAEAE
392,756,000/ 7t (20224 : 406,216,000 7T)
B EP #386,633,000/% 7T (20224 : 383,516,000
BoT) FEEt R — i?ﬂﬁﬁmﬁu&)\ AMEEE
DRECWBEZTEMNRIE  ME®OIZEHER
AEBREEE - 5A2022¢12H31E|E’J HaE
383,516,000/ 7C B A& £2023F 12 A31H It F
B RFER AW A (20224 : 34,968,000 7T) ©

(b) oWMER
EE‘EE*E&TF?%A (E22EREKE) DBHE
AARREOBEERBN®RE  BESEDH -

%%@*ﬁkaLﬁﬁBﬁ]W@%ﬂi D i B9 2 B A
Ko 52 1) 2 g M A RHE LRI

EEERRAREZXBUE—5
2 WA ERE D BBEH -

DH

B & 8

&

ﬁ%
il

REAAREBR 224 (2028 :3B)WNRBERE A
#1567,437,000% Jt 507,031,000 jr (2022
% : 460,597,000/ jT * 450,976,000/ 7T &
310,377,000 0) 2 WA BB AEE W A Z
10% o BRZANSCRTH B8 & o + 7 48 H b 2K 5 B8 — oh
AEREZWABBAREFEKRAZ10% °

AREBEZEIIT100% 2 MAKBERTEAMHESE
AEBEBIBIO% ZIFRBEEMNTBE A - &
IW TR 3 B HL o
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6. OTHER INCOME 6. HflA
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Government grants BT 7 B 31,022 18,895
Fair value gains on financial assets BAREFAER
at fair value through profit or loss EHMEEAABERE 61 438
Interest income B U A 34,460 18,760
Rental income He WA 2,401 2,516
Others Hfth 1,106 4,807
69,050 45,416

7. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and

7. RUEEESZER

FIFESHERA « SHE R MISHEEKAMITERAX

marketing costs and administrative expenses are ZERSWNWT :
analysed as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLFE
2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Depreciation and amortisation expenses  #T & K#iHE A
(Notes 13 and 16) (K1at13K16) 62,960 51,431
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE
(Note 14) (KtiF14) 22,366 23,142
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) EERMA (#iE8) 337,811 299,240
Changes in inventories of finished goods EKm &k ERMEFEEH
and work in progress 174,312 414,525
Raw materials used and outsourcing FTARMHERINBE R
expenses 1,348,846 955,067
Provision for inventories (Note 19) TFEEE (BaE19) 197,899 354
Rental expenses for short-term leases and REHHEEREKEEEEHEE
leases of low-value asset MHemx 198 178
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET B &
— Audit services —BEZIR 2,088 2,445
— Non-audit services —EEZRE - -
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7. EXPENSES BY NATURE (Cont’d)

Research and development costs recognised as
expenses and included in administrative expenses
for the year ended 31 December 2023 were
HK$421,357,000 (2022: HK$348,071,000) and mainly
comprised of employee costs of HK$211,213,000
(2022: HK$186,914,000) and material costs of
HK$98,479,000 (2022: HK$76,179,000). No research
and development costs were capitalised during the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

7. RMEISZER(E)

B E2023F1N2A3MBEFERERBAI LA
T M7 & F 8K 24~ 5421,357,00008 7T
(20224 : 348,071,000/ 7L) ' EEBHEREEKA
211,213,000/ 7T (20224 : 186,914,000/8 1) &
MR 7898,479,0007%8 7T (20224 : 76,179,000
WIT) c MBI ZE2023F12A31BIEEERN > W&
R RFEABERAN T AE R (2022F : £) o

8. EEREAEX

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31MBLLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ * IR EWET 309,915 273,782
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRET B R (B 2# (@) & (b))

(Notes (a) and (b)) 27,896 25,458

337,811 299,240

(a) The Group operates a MPF Scheme for its
eligible employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are expensed
as incurred.

(b)  The Company's PRC subsidiaries participate
in defined contribution retirement schemes
based on the laws and regulations in the PRC.
The local government authorities of the PRC
is responsible for the pension liabilities of
these retired employees in the PRC. These PRC
subsidiaries’ contributions to the retirement
schemes in the PRC are expensed as incurred.

() FAEEREBFBCGEREERUBESRS
g AEEYRES A ZHARNELR
SIMERIST

(b) ARAEFBEZHMBARRETBEERR
AR S R E B FRINGTE - FEIM TR
RBEEZSTREENERE 2RKEE
- ZEFTENBRRYPBRERNRTE 2
HRREERIERSE -
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8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Cont’d)

(c) Five highest paid individuals

Total emoluments paid to the five highest paid
individuals of the Group during the year are as follows:

8. EE®AMAX(E)

(0 TEZEEHFMAL

FAXNTAEELEERTFMA L 2EME M
S E

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A3MBLEE

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ - ZEE R EWET 3,102 3,135
Bonuses TEAT 16,206 9,532
Contributions to retirement schemes RORET B =5 1,052 1,162
20,360 13,829

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included one director of the Company (2022: two) and
their emoluments were within the following bands:

hTESERFMALEE R (2022F : MB) AR
AESEMEELHME N FUTEE :

Number of individuals

AE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T — 2,500,000 7T 1 2
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7t — 3,000,000 7T 1 2
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T — 3,500,0005% 7T - 1
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 £ — 5,000,000 7T, 2 -
HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 5,500,001% 7T — 6,000,000/ 7T 1 -
5 5

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

RAFER  AEBESLEA DR K=FHA L
BN < 15 45 00 B2 7 5= (B 5 N B AR 5% (B B 2 2 B 3k
1ERBEEZ#ME -

FEREETEANEARAA 2023FFH 113



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE

9. FINANCE COSTS - NET

9. RBEMAE-FHE

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31MBLEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Finance costs Bl & R A
— Interest expense on borrowings —BEZNEXH 23,264 27,019
— Interest expense on lease liabilities -~ HEaBZANEXH 695 2,079
— Interest expense arose from —BERRBEREAZ
guarantee deposits received MEXZH 18,635 10,372
42,594 39,470
Finance income & WA
— Interest income on cash and cash -RehkReEEBYL
equivalents R B U A (11,700) (5,348)
— Interest income arose from -BENREBEEELEZ
guarantee deposits paid B U A (10,129) (8,712)
(21,829) (14,060)
Finance costs — net REERKA—F58 20,765 25,410
10. TAXATION 10. #H1E
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLtLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TF& T
Current taxation R Z IR
— PRC corporate income tax —FhEEMERH 65,488 24,701
— Withholding tax on distributed profits —BE D BLE A 2 B FTISH
(Note (c)) (K15 () 150 6,033
65,638 30,734
Deferred taxation B8
— PRC corporate income tax — R ERMERH (27,265) 19,243
— Withholding tax on undistributed profits — &K% Btia M 2 BT HE
(Note (c)) (Kt it(c)) 10,927 24,978
(16,338) 44,221
Taxation M IE 49,300 74,955
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TAXATION (Cont’d)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had
been made as the Group did not generate any
assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

In accordance with the relevant regulations
of the corporate income tax laws of the
PRC, the applicable statutory tax rate of
Huada Electronics and Shanghai Huahong
Integrated Circuit Co., Ltd (“Huahong”) is
25%. Nevertheless, since Huada Electronics
qualified as an “Integrated Circuit Design
Enterprise in National Planning Layout” and
Huahong qualified as a “High and New
Technology Enterprise” for the year ended
31 December 2023, Huada Electronics and
Huahong have adopted a preferential tax rate
of 10% and 15% respectively for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: a preferential
tax rate of 10% and 15% respectively). Based
on management’s self-assessment and their
track record of success in obtaining such
types of qualifications, it is highly likely that
Huada Electronics and Huahong will qualify
as an “Integrated Circuit Design Enterprise in
National Planning Layout” and as a “High and
New Technology Enterprise” respectively after
the year ended 31 December 2023 and thus
will enjoy a preferential tax rate of 10% and
15% respectively.

According to the relevant regulations of the
corporate income tax laws of the PRC, when
the Group’s foreign investment enterprises
distribute dividends out of their profits
earned from 1 January 2008 onwards to its
shareholders outside Mainland China, such
dividends are subject to withholding tax at a
rate of 10%.

10.
(a)

(b)

(c)

B (&

BN A EBNEE2023F12A318 IEF
EREBTEELETMERTOER &I
LB BFNETME LB (20228 - ) o

BIBEPBRCEMEFRENBERARTE X
B EBETEXNERERET AR
([Z9T ) 2 BAREERER25% © AT -
HREE2023F12A31BLFEEKRE
FTHEIBRRREMBEANENK TR
¥ |ER MEUHEESFEMEEIE
o BEERNEFRETREE2023F
12A3MBILEFEDBIEMN10%K15% 2
BEHEEQ2022F : DB A10% K% 15% 2
BEMER) HENEEEBNBARTHUR
BEKNESZERNER  REZ2023
F12A318EFE 2% EREFREDT
RS PIESTRREEHBDAEK
BRI OEIBEERIEFHMEEIE
B RAMEDRIEF10% K 15% 2 BER

BEFECEMSHENERET A5
B 7 SN 3% B 1 5 LA RS B 1w E AP B 9 3 LA
SNIE R > B B 200841 A 1H # E £ 8%
F o ZERBBEMN10%N TGS -
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10. TAXATION (Cont‘d)

(d) Reconciliation between the taxation on (d)
the Group’'s profit before taxation and the

10. H®iE (&

theoretical taxation that would arise using the
respective applicable statutory tax rates is as

follows:

AREBERM A S M 2 IR IR R BERE
EMERAFEZERRBIERAT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLELEE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Profit before taxation B 56 Al a2 A 736,665 607,842
Taxation calculated at respective REBEREEMEFE
applicable statutory tax rates Z HIE 188,732 156,396
Effect of tax concession IR % < & (112,035) (96,698)
Research and development costs T 7¢ K B 8 B AR B AN 0 BR
additional deductions (47,607) (30,823)
Income not subject to tax BARDTUA (296) (535)
Expenses not tax deductible LR 853 788
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred MEEHHELETIE XL
taxation - 17,572
Withholding tax on distributed profits EoiaMRAER
and current year's undistributed profits RO BLm N 2 BIFTISH 11,077 31,011
Tax losses for which no deferred tax WERERREREEEZ
asset was recognised WIAE R 7,968 37375
Others Eh 608 (6,131)
Taxation IR 49,300 74,955
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10. TAXATION (Cont’d) 10. BLE (&
(e) Deferred taxation (e) EZEHIE
The movements in the deferred tax assets and liabilities W NEt RIBHR — MBS EEA 2 &8 FRELER
during the year without taking into consideration the BEERBBEZZSHNT :
offsetting of balances with the same taxation authority
are as follows:
Impairment
of trade
and other
Salary and receivables
welfare Deferred  and others
Provision for payables government EZRHEM
inventories EfEe grants EKHE Total
Deferred tax assets BEHEEE FERRE NEN EBERN#E HAENHfS aif
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TET THL TET TET
At 1 January 2022, as restated" ®2022F1818 (E5))0 18,146 8,274 8,882 43,659 78,961
Exchange differences EiEE (1,379) (688) (690) (2,744) (5,501)
Charged to the statement of profit or loss FABRR (4,108) (324) (1,611) (15,116) (21,159)
At 31 December 2022, as restated 12022F12831R (85))0 12,659 7,262 6,581 25,799 52,301
At 1 January 2023 R2023E181H 12,659 1,262 6,581 25,799 52,301
Exchange differences 5 (316) (110) (100) (365) (891)
Charged to the statement of profitor loss ~ F ABRE 20,328 987 826 2,915 25,056
At 31 December 2023 1®2023F12A31R 32,671 8,139 7,307 28,349 76,466
Withholding
Fair value tax on
gains and undistributed
others profits
D RERE K2 EEF Total
Deferred tax liabilities ELHEEE MEAM ZFEMFAEH a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET
At 1 January 2022, as restated® M202251H18 (E%)) 0O 9,639 10,676 20,315
Exchange differences fEH =% (370) (1,865)  (2,235)
Charged to the statement of profit or loss SFABRR (1,916) 30,271 28,355
Reclassification to current income tax payable &% #8 & & Hi fE < pr 15 % 2008 = (5,293) (5,293)
At 31 December 2022, as restated® M2022%12A318 (E5))9 7,353 33,789 41,142
At 1 January 2023 M2023F1H18 7,353 33,789 41,142
Exchange differences N ER (67) (555)  (622)
Charged to the statement of profit or loss ~ sf AB#H X (2,209) 10,927 8,718
At 31 December 2023 ®2023%12A31H 5,077 44,161 49,238
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10.
(e)
(i)

118

TAXATION (Cont’d)
Deferred taxation (Cont’d)

The Group has adopted the amendments to
HKAS 12, “Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single transaction”,
retrospectively from 1 January 2022. The
amendment requires the Group to recognise a
deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for the deductible and taxable temporary
differences associated with right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities respectively, rather than
to recognise on a net basis as in prior years.
Hence, the balances of deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities at 1 January 2022 had
been gross-up by HK$5,400,000 accordingly
and the balances of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities at 31 December
2022 had been gross-up by HK$3,200,000
accordingly.

10.
(e)
(i)

BIE (42
I SE B 08 (48

ANEBEB2022F1 818 £ B PENEE
RINER G EAFI2REHE-—RIFE
EMEEMBEEBEMNELERIE] - %E
FIERKASERFEREEEMBEEAR
RN R EATHERZ RS BIER
EERIBEEMELEHIBERE - MIFNE
TFEERFEELERR - Bt - IREWRIE
BEEMEEHIBAENR2022F1 /18K
#3258 O H8 FE 4% | F85,400,00078 7T MR IE
HMIEEEMELEHRIEBENR2022F12H
31 BMERREE B FE W 783,200,000 7T ©
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10. TAXATION (Cont’d)
(e) Deferred taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities at 31 December 2023
and 31 December 2022 after taking into consideration
the offsetting of balances with the same taxation
authority for financial reporting purposes are as
follows:

10. BB (&
(e) EEHHE(EZ)
M2023F12A31H k2022128318 » 81 %

ERBOME - &t REHER —RIGHEE 2 &5
® BREHEEERABHOT

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

2023%12H831H 2022912 A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET F& T

Deferred tax assets RETIEE E 71,389 44,948
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIAEE (44,161) (33,789)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carrying forwards to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through the future
taxable profits is probable. At 31 December 2023,
the Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of
HK$26,960,000 (2022: HK$19,422,000) in respect
of tax losses amounting to HK$149,518,000 (2022:
HK$104,745,000) that can be carried forward against
future taxable income. Tax losses of HK$122,587,000
has no expiry date (2022: HK$79,579,000), and
HK$26,931,000 will expire within 5 years (2022:
HK$25,166,000).

BERIBEEDRAE 2 HIBBBMEER -
NBATREE B AR 2 ER TS M E IR G @HE R
RAR o 202312318 » AEBEIW ARG A] 45
B DA B8 R 2R B AR s Ml 2 B TR E518149,518,000
77T (20224 : 104,745,0005 JT) MR IR T
TH & E26,960,0007 7T (20224 : 19,422,000
JC) ° 122,587,000/ T 2 %1 18 & 18 W & 5 M B 53
(20224 : 79,579,000/ L) * iM26,931,0007 T
15 A5 A fE m (20224 ¢ 25,166,000/ 7T) °
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11. PROPOSED DIVIDEND 11. EBERE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHETT

Proposed dividend EERE 213,137 162,390

The Board recommends the payment of a dividend EEeEENER2023F12A31H L FEIRR

of HK10.5 cents per share for the year ended 31 tﬂxm 57U (20224 : FARS.0 L) IR B © %

December 2023 (2022: HK8.0 cents per share). The B% B B AR A RE R AR [ FEERRR

proposed dividend is subject to the approval of the iﬁ?iﬁt&fé FAIEE o RIBARAEIFR2024

shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming FIH28EHM B BITROHBEFENERERE

annual general meeting of the Company. The proposed 213,137,000/ 7t (20224 : 162,390,000/ 7T ) 3
dividend of HK$213,137,000 (2022: HK$162,390,000), BERNGEMBRRAERR—HAE -

calculated based on the Company’s number of shares
issued at 28 March 2024, is not recognised as a liability
in the consolidated financial statements.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BRER
GREARRNDRE FIIBIEAE

xtT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the following data:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Profit for the year attributable to BERAAREEREELZ
owners of the Company (HK$'000) REEEHMN(FHET) 686,431 531,431
Weighted average number of ordinary AU ESRERER
shares for the purposes of basic 2 L@ e EE
earnings per share 2,029,872,000 2,029,872,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) EREXRZF GE) 33.82 26.18
No diluted earnings per share is presented as the BRAR AW EE R REEITBEEE LB
Company did not have any potential dilutive ordinary WA R R RS AT o

share outstanding.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥M¥- -BRERRZE
Buildings and
leasehold
improvements Plant and Motor Furniture ~ Construction
BFR  machinery vehicles  and fixtures in progress Total
HENEEE HREREE Ef  GRREE HRIR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Fhn Thn Fhn Thn Thn
Cost A
At 1 January 2022 R02F1A18 88,507 108,239 7,633 31,91 34 236,631
Additions AE 2,007 10,877 420 5,544 - 18,848
Transfer upon completion TIER = - = = (325) (325)
Disposals RE - - (1,703) (593) = (2,29)
Exchange differences ERER (7,575) (9,587) (597) (2,894) (16) (20,669)
At 31 December 2022 20225128318 82,939 109,529 5753 33,968 - B8
At 1 January 2023 R2023E1518 82,939 109,529 5,753 33,968 - 232,189
Additions NE 841 9,064 - 5423 846 16,174
Adjustment on cost WARE (2,647) - (44) - - (2,691)
Disposals RE - (7,676) - (2,785) - (10,461)
Exchange differences EREE (1,027) (1,574) (82) (650) (6) (3,339)
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31A 80,106 109,343 5,627 35,956 840 231,872
Accumulated depreciation and ZERAE
impairment
At 1 January 2022 R2022%1418 (66,560) (90,514) (7,347) (21,2006) - (185,627)
Depreciation & (8,518) (8,745) (95) (3,900) . (21,258)
Disposals RE - - 1,675 593 - 2,268
Exchange differences EiZE 5,966 8,002 56) 1924 . 16,454
At 31 December 2022 #2022128318 69112 (91257) (5205  (22,58) - (183163)
At 1 January 2023 R2023F1818 (69,112) (91,257) (5,205) (22,589) - (188,163)
Depreciation ik (8.736) (6,834) (13) (4,054) - (19,747)
Disposals RE - 1,667 - 2,767 - 10,434
Exchange differences EHER 1,046 1,298 75 331 - 2,750
At 31 December 2023 H2023%5128318 (7680)  (89,126) (528)  (23545) - (194,726)
Net book amount RERE
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31A 3,304 20,217 374 12,411 840 37,146
At 31 December 2022 R2022512A31A 13,827 18,272 548 11,379 - 44,026

Depreciation expense of HK$1,213,000 (2022:
HK$1,339,000), HK$1,076,000 (2022: HK$1,142,000)
and HK$17,458,000 (2022: HK$18,777,000) has been
charged to selling and marketing costs, cost of sales and
administrative expenses, respectively.

&R #1,213,000/%8 7T (20224 : 1,339,000
#7T) 1,076,000/ 7T (20224 : 1,142,000/
JT) % 17,458,000 7T (20224 : 18,777,000
T EDRFAHEERMBHEERAE - §EKAK
MITBFAX -

FEEFEARNKERDE 2023FFH
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14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. FRHEEE
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31MBLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#n s
Beginning of the year F 71 33,124 56,331
Exchange differences PE X = =E (323) (4,035)
Additions NE 2,972 2,304
Effect of modification of lease ENHEN T E - 1,666
Depreciation e (22,366) (23,142)
Reductions kA (3,195) -
End of the year FR 10,212 33,124
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. BEYHE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLLEE

2023 2022

20235 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FE T

Beginning of the year F1 49,199 53,491
Exchange differences PE =58 (704) (4,540)
Changes in fair value NRAEEE 61 248
End of the year FR 48,556 49,199

(a)

(0

122

The investment properties are located in the
PRC and are subject to various tenancies with
terms ranging from 1 year to 3 years.

The rental income from investment
properties for the year ended 31 December
2023 amounted to HK$2,401,000 (2022:
HK$2,516,000).

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties at 31 December 2023 have been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on that date by China Alliance Appraisal
Co., Ltd, an independent qualified property
valuer. The valuation was principally based
on direct comparison method and income
approach by taking into account the terms of
the existing leases and other external evidence
such as current market rents or sales evidence
for similar types of properties in the locality, and
using capitalisation rates or discount rate that
reflect current market expectation for the assets
being valued.

(a)

ZEREMEROUNTEL AN EIFHZ
ZIHMORA -

RNEE2023F 128318 ILEE % EY
¥0F2UWA AH2,401,00058 7T (20224 -
2,516,000/ 71) °

ANEBZEYEN2023F128318 24
RETIRBB YA ERDEGERMIL RP
BAELEEFIHERARNNRZBETZ(EE
SHEAH ZEEZEENEELBAM
Wk 2EREROZERREMINE
B WRAKI B RIER ¥ 2 RS
BHEFEERY - WFEARRYEATEE
ZEBEZEEMSEE 2 AL R
MEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)
(Cont’d)

At 31 December 2023, the fair value
measurements of the Group’'s investment
properties were all categorised into Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy. Details of fair value
hierarchy classification are set out in Note 3.3
to the consolidated financial statements. There
were no transfers of fair value measurements
into or out of Level 3 during the year.

Management of the Group works with China
Alliance Appraisal Co., Ltd to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation methods
and inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements.
Where there is a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuation
will be reported to the Board.

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as follows:

Fair value at 31
December 2023 Valuation

Unobservable

15. REYWE(E)
© (&)

R2023F 128318 AREEBEFEKREY
(N ARENEHNREEALARBERRIER
ME=H - RAERFIRBHDEFIESE
REEMERRMEIIN - RFER » &%
EREMEVELAABIFEEANELE
=

AEBERERILRPREEENGHER
RAHERRBIMEEEEE=R 22N
Bt ENEEAEREE -EEEAARE
HIREAREE  BRESFFEREBNR
.

BREAEANBURE 2 8 (5=H) (EAR
BEEERDT

Range of Relationship of
unobservable inputs/ unobservable inputs to
weighted average fair value

Description 72023%F12H31 method(s) inputs BUERCEEE SUBRCHBEHEAAE
#15 ADRE ®EFE BEUBRZEE B/ METLHE HER
HK$’000
THERT
Office building — 48,115 Direct Market price RMB38,460 The higher the market
Beijing comparison T ERK per square metre  price, the higher the
MAE-IER method Y Hk fair value
BEELBA AE#38,4607T MHEBEERER O
B
Carparks — Beijing 441 Income Discount rate, 7.4%, The higher the discount
EEf -t R approach rental RMB800/month/  rate, the lower the fair
&= WHE g each carpark  value; the higher the

7.4% -  rental, the higher the
AER¥8007,/ B,/ fair value
BEEFEEN HREYE  AAEYR
K HedE 2AE
B
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. EFEE

Computer
software
= B B
HK$'000
FETT

Year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE2022F12A31H L E
Opening net book amount FYREFEE 55,947
Exchange differences fEH ZR (3,628)
Additions NE 1,264
Amortisation b (30,173)
Closing net book amount FORREFE 23,410
At 31 December 2022 720225%12H31H
Cost (DN 96,830
Accumulated amortisation g3 (73,420)
Net book amount RHEFE 23,410
Year ended 31 December 2023 HZE2023F12831BLEE
Opening net book amount FYIREFE 23,410
Exchange differences M 5 =% (613)
Additions NE 85,057
Amortisation 5 (43,213)
Closing net book amount FRREFE 64,641
At 31 December 2023 7#2023%F12H31H
Cost %N 106,706
Accumulated amortisation 25T 5 (42,065)
Net book amount SR FE 64,641

Amortisation expense amounting to HK$43,213,000
(2022: HK$30,173,000) has been charged to research
and development costs under administrative expenses.

35 9 243,213,0007% JT (20224 : 30,173,000
BID) BEET AT IE N 2% K FHEK AT -

124  china Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023F 12 A31H L FE
17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 17. REEAQATRE

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31MBLEE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Beginning of the year F1 16,514 16,669
Share of results B ¥4E 173 1,307
Exchange differences fE R =% (237) (1,462)
Dividend ) (234) =
End of the year FR 16,216 16,514
Details of the associate at 31 December 2023 and 2022 & N B FR2023F K2022F12A318 2 # B M
are as follows: N
Interest held by the Group
Place of establishment  Principal place of rEEfEES
Name and type of legal entity  operation and activities Paid-in capital 2023 2022
a8 BRUBEREEEREEY ITEEBHIRER BWER 2023% 20225
Beijing Chipadvanced PRC, limited liability Mainland China, provision of RMB57,907,381 7.29% 7.29%
Technology Inc. company integrated circuit testing AE57,907,3817C
ERER R R R hE - FREARR services
BRA7 hE R - R AR AE A
R
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the M2023F 12 A3 A AR EREE AR RIS
Group’s interest in associate at 31 December 2023 BXBEBEQO22F - |) -
(2022: nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31B It FE
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EBEZRHMEWRIE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
20234%12831H 2022912 A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T&E T
Trade receivables 2 FEWRIE 377,663 466,141
Less: Loss allowance for JB OB IE R (M aE b))
impairment (Note (b)) (62,671) (64,860)
Trade receivables — net B REIWRIE - F58 314,992 401,281
Other receivables from third parties H bW S = 7 FIE 224,862 265,958
Less: Loss allowance for Ji BB E (M)
impairment (Note (c)) (3,452) (4,512)
Other receivables from third parties Hiab U E = H KB — 558
— net 221,410 261,446
Other receivables from related parties £t i f& Y B Hs 75 5K 18
(Note 30) (B1a#30) 17,284 23,062
Undeducted input value-added tax RNOBR B THIE B T
and prepaid tax SSENNE TR 124,637 35,054
Prepayments and deposits BRRBERES 53,775 211,686
732,098 932,529
Less: non-current receivables Ji FER B FE MR IR (157,813) (200,985)
574,285 /3 5yalay
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont’d)

Trade and other receivables were unsecured and
interest-free. Included in the balance of trade
receivables are trade receivables from related parties
of HK$39,206,000 (2022: HK$48,314,000) (Note 30).
Included in the balance of other receivables from third
parties are guarantee deposits of HK$216,110,000
(2022: HK$257,376,000). Included in the balance of
prepayments and deposits are prepayments to related
parties of HK$52,000 (2022: HK$52,000) (Note 30).

Trade and other receivables of the Group at 31
December 2023 and 2022 were denominated in the
following currencies:

18. EFRHMEWRE (Z)

ESREMBBKRREBYAERIFRE S 5T A
BoORKFELEGRZBAH A ESEKFIES
39,206,0007 7T (20224 : 48,314,000 7T) (A
i130) c FFAHMEWE = S RBLHR A ZRE
£ /4216,110,000/%8 JT (20224 : 257,376,000/
TC) c AP ATBRNRBERIR S LR 2 B 5 T8~
I8 552,000 7T (20224 : 52,0008 7T) (K77
30) -

AN EEN20235F K2022F 128318 28 5 M &
o FE W R TE IR EEEEI ST

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

20235128318 20229 12AH31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FAT

Renminbi AR 731,595 932,019
Hong Kong dollars BT 503 510
732,098 932,529

(a) The majority of the Group's sales are with (a) AEBZHERSD 2 EEHRI0BE

credit terms of 30 days to 180 days. The
remaining sales are due immediately after the
delivery of goods or provision of services. The
ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss
allowance for impairment) presented based on
the revenue recognition date is as follows:

180H - EAAHENERES MR Mt
ARG - RIBWAERBITHNES
FEM R IR (IR IR BB BEE) MR D
e

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

2023%128318 2022512H31H

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

Within 30 days 30HA 64,782 48,961
31 days to 60 days 31HZ60H 94,185 113,489
61 days to 180 days 61HZ£180H 152,897 235,362
Over 180 days and within 1 year 180B A ER1ER 548 3,469
Over 1 year TF A L 2,580 —
314,992 401,281
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. ESZRHMEWRIE(Z)
(Cont’d)
(b) Movements in the loss allowance for (b) AEEEFERFBRESERE 2E
impairment of the Group’s trade receivables are wmr
as follows:
Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31MBLLEE
2023 2022
20234F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Beginning of the year F 1 64,860 82,580
Net reversal of impairment losses VERIZN SEi=DeEc 4 (1,271) (11,154)
Exchange differences PE W =% (918) (6,566)
End of the year R 62,671 64,860

128

At 31 December 2023, the gross carrying
amount of trade receivables measured at
amortised cost was HK$131,224,000 (2022:
HK$150,196,000), of which HK$66,267,000
(2022: HK$86,086,000) was within one year
with expected credit loss rate of 0.5% (2022:
0.9%), HK$3,042,000 (2022: HK$424,000)
was between one year to five years with
expected credit loss rate ranging from 15.1%
to 100.0% (2022: 100.0%), HK$18,360,000
(2022: HK$18,637,000) was over five years
with expected credit loss rate of 100.0%
(2022: 100.0%), and HK$43,555,000 (2022:
HK$45,049,000) was from customers with
specific credit risk with expected credit loss rate
of 100.0% (2022: 100.0%).

R2023F12H31H @ B HEK AT EH
B REWFIAREARME 131,224,000
7t (20224 : 150,196,000/& JT) » H &
66,267,000/ JT (20224 : 86,086,000
BIC) B1FER - BHEEBIEBEXRAE05%
(20224 : 0.9%) 3,042,000/ T (2022
& 1 424,00087C) B1EE5F - FBHEE
B RN F15.1%%F100.0% (20224 :
100.0% ) * 18,360,000/ JT (20224 :
18,637,000 70) B5F A F - EHI{EE
E518 & 5100.0% (20224 : 100.0% ) °
43,555,000 7T (20224 : 45,049,000
BIL)REREFEEERBMNEER -
FEHEEEBIBXAE100.0% (2022F :
100.0%) °

China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EBESZRHMEWRIE(Z)
(Cont’d)
(c) Movements in the loss allowance for () REBHMEWRIBREBEREZZ
impairment of the Group’s other receivables are w
as follows:
Year ended 31 December
HZEZ12A3MBLEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FETT
Beginning of the year F1) o 4,512 2,073
(Net reversal of impairment losses)/ CREEIBFEREE)
impairment losses and written off VRN SR=5E = (1,002) 2,720
Exchange differences PEH ZE%R (58) (281)
End of the year FR 3,452 4,512

Other receivables are mainly rental deposits,
deposits with suppliers and advance to employees.
Majority of the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent record of default. In
the situation where no companies with comparable
credit ratings can be identified, expected credit
losses are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record
of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. The loss rate applied for such receivables
at 31 December 2023 was 1.4% (2022: 1.6%).

HEtRWHRIEETEAHSKRS «  HERE
S RFEMEEFKIA o LA EKREBMAEREY
I EE AR ENERIE R S - EEA
HAER L EEFANARMNBRAT 78
HEEFREERRERAREASEEAS
ERSEMEE R RETHE - BEXE
VB 38 B DA R IR IR 1T AR R Be oK 2R A% B AR
SUEYTE ORI o b 5 FE UM FRIE A2023F 12 A
S1HFTERREE R AE1.4% (20224 -
1.6%) o

19. INVENTORIES 19. FE&
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
20239128318 20229F12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Work in progress M 302,395 139,136
Finished goods FUPX o 546,226 745,557
848,621 884,693

The cost of inventories recognised as expense

and

included in cost of sales amounted to

HK$1,523,158,000 (2022: HK$1,312,849,000).

Provision for inventories of HK$197,899,000 (2022:
HK$557,000), mainly for relatively long ageing and slow
moving inventories, has been included in cost of sales.

HRAEASITFABEBEREAZTFEKRAN A
1,523,158,000/8 7T (20224 : 1,312,849,000/%
JC) ©

TEHHRERIBHEFEANTERB

197,899,000/ 7T (20224 : 557,000;‘%7‘555§+)\
SHERA o
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20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 200 RERFATEEYPNZIRGEES
AND RESTRICTED CASH
(a) Cash and cash equivalents (a) HBREeRBLEEY
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
20239128318 2022412H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FETT
Cash Be
At banks and on hand WITHETFERE 670,309 1,020,700
At other financial institutions BB i E & TT
— A related party (Note 30) — @t (#75£30) 103,169 62,489
— Others —HAb 233 -
773,711 1,083,189
Short-term time deposits (Note (i) 52 HATE BATE SR (M1 AE(3))
At bank RITHET 245,525 =
At other financial institutions BB S EET
— A related party (Note 30) — s (M iE30) 88,279 89,559
333,804 89,559
1,107,515 1,172,748
(i) Short-term time deposits represent deposits with original (i) REEHEFEARDERINBAEAIMEASIUATZER

maturity of 3 months or less.

(b) Restricted cash (b) ZFREE2
At 31 December 2023, cash of HK$1,000 (2022: M2023F12H318 » AR ERIT 2 HE £1,0008
HK$33,859,000) was held at banks mainly as security 7T (20224 : 33,859,000/ 7T ) = & AR1TA N E
for bank acceptance bills. EZER-
21. TIME DEPOSITS 21. EHEX
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
20239128318 2022912H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
At banks WITHET 838,648 223,896
At other financial institutions HA i BB T
— A related party (Note 30) — @t (B 5£30) 551,743 597,804
1,390,391 821,700
Less: non-current time deposits i IEmE T BER (706,230) (89,559)
684,161 PSRN
Time deposits represent deposits with original maturity EHERDERIPBAIEAU EZTFRK -
over 3 months. The effective interest rate on these R2023F12A318 ' ZEGARZEREF XA
deposits at 31 December 2023 was 2.4% (2022: 2.5%) 2.4% (20224 : 2.5%) °
per annum.
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22.

SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM

22.

Ordinary share of
HK$0.01 each

MR K a8

EREECOBIZERR
Issued and Share
Authorised fully paid  Share capital premium Total
EE ERTRER R R4 RE Bt
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FEL TEL TET
At 1 January 2022, M2022%1818 -
31 December 2022, 2022%12R318 -
1January 2023 and  2023F1R1A K
31 December 2023 2023%12H31H 30,000,000 2,029,872 20,299 205,155 225,454
23. LEASE LIABILITIES 23. HEAE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Beginning of the year F1 35,563 58,870
Exchange differences MEHER (356) (4,265)
Interest on the lease liabilities HEBEBEANE 695 2,079
New leases g E 3,232 2,314
Effect of modification of lease BHREENTE - 1,666
Reductions DR (3,550) -
Lease payments & (23,340) (25,101)
End of the year FR 12,244 35,563
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EDITERAE :
Current portion ik JE:i3%) 7,785 23,768
Non-current portion JEM BB 1D 4,459 11,795
12,244 35,563
HEEFEANKAERAT 2023FFHK 131
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

24, B RHEHMEMNFIE

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

20235128318 2022 12H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTEx FHT

Trade payables 2 5 BN HIE 390,463 602,466

Other payables to related parties Hh F& 1~ B Bk 75 ;1B

(Note 30) (Bt7E30) 60,778 58,910

Salary and welfare payables JE 1< 7 & M 1& 51 104,343 93,408

Other taxes payables H b e IE 3,472 5,295
Other payables and accrued expenses  E ftf & < ;X IE K fE 5+ & A

(Note (a)) (Ki&t(a)) 618,254 501,595

1,177,310 159 6,674

Less: non-current payables J6 0 JE B FE S SR IE (371,171) (319,546)

806,139 942,128

(a) Other payables and accrued expenses mainly (a) HihENRBREFEAIZRENA

represented payables for software usage fees
for the purposes of research and development
and sales commissions, and guarantee deposits
received. Included in the balance of other
payables and accrued expenses are guarantee
deposits received of HK$331,789,000 (2022:
HK$351,519,000).

The ageing analysis of trade payables presented based
on the date of invoices is as follows:

RAERAEEN B EREREE
e MEWREFL - st AELMBENK
BELREFAERGEHRAZERREEZR
331,789,000/ 7T (20224 : 351,519,000
EITT) e

BIREZE B Y REE 5 IR R IE 8 BR R 9 4 40
NS

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

2023%12H318 2022512H31H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT THT

Within 30 days 308 A 158,273 358,690
31 days to 60 days 31HE60H 73,971 66,313
Over 60 days 60H A _E 158,219 177,463
390,463 602,466

Included in the balance of trade payables are trade
payables from related parties of HK$62,399,000 (2022:
HK$31,312,000) (Note 30).

AESEMNRELEGAN BB FE S ENK
18 462,399,000/ 7T (20224 : 31,312,000 7T)
(#15£30) °
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25. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

25. EEBATHEED

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31MBLEE

2023 2022

202345 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET F& T

Beginning of the year F9 51,046 59,211
Exchange differences PE W =% (778) (4,890)
Additions 30 8,186 6,145
Credited to the statement of profit or loss & E#m* (982) (9,420)
End of the year FR 57,472 51,046

Government grants represent various grants received
from local government authorities for financing various
research and development projects conducted by the
Group. These grants will be recognised as income over
the period necessarily to match them with the cost that
they are intended to compensate.

26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

I fi Bh fE L B B AR R EE 1T R B R T 5T AN A 2
HE BT BAEERRESEME) - 25
Bhi§ I — E BIE R FERR AU - IAE B R E T LA
R0l N e

26. RITRHEMEER

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

20234%12831H 2022912 A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T F& T

Loans from a shareholder (Note 30) MR E K (A 7E30) 430,359 548,546
Entrusted loans from related parties At ZEER

(Note 30) (H17#30) 66,209 67,169

496,568 615,715

All the bank and other borrowings of the Group were
denominated in Renminbi, unsecured and borrowed
at fixed interest rates. The average effective interest
rate of the Group’s bank and other borrowings at 31
December 2023 was 3.9% (2022: 4.1%) per annum.

FIEAREBZRITREMEEHUARKSE -
ABEET R AEE R EEE - 182023F12 731
H AEBFTREMEENFEHERFENNES
3.9% (20224 : 4.1%) °
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27. CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM 27. EEEEZRERE
OPERATIONS
Year ended 31 December
BZ12H31BLLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Profit before taxation B £ BT A 736,665 607,842
Adjustments for: FHE -
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BERZETE
and equipment 19,747 21,258
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 22,366 23,142
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 43,213 30,173
Interest income LU A (34,460) (32,820)
Interest expenses FEX 23,959 39,470
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, BREME  BELFZE
plant and equipment EE, (W) 8 (112)
Gain on disposal of lease REHEEWER (95) =
Share of results of associates FE(EEE 2 N R EE (173) (1,307)
Net reversal of impairment losses B 5 [ H th FE WK IE
on trade and other receivables Rk (B &5 18 % 5 3] (2,273) (8,229)
Provision for inventories FEEE 197,899 557
Changes in fair value of BEMEAREE
investment properties (61) (248)
Fair value gains on financial assets at AR EFTABZES /M
fair value through profit or loss BEALEKRZ = (190)
1,006,795 679,536
Changes in working capital LEEREH
Inventories BE (174,313) (414,561)
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E it U 508 191,824 (233,719)
Deferred government grants 4R JE TR 6 B (982) (9,420)
Contract liabilities EHaE 8,655 389,182
Trade and other payables B 5 N H b FE A~ 008 (87,399) 649,165
Restricted cash SRR &R & 33,598 (33,877)
Cash flows generated from operations ZEBE4LZRERE 978,178 1,026,306
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28. LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessor
The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments

receivables under non-cancellable operating leases are
as follows:

28. HEXRIE
AEBEAHBEA

AREBERBENA R 2 EREMNRRER 2
REHERABBELT :

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
2023%F12831H 20229F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Within one year 1R 2,599 2,637
After one year but within two years FIFEREFE2FA 2,599 2,637
5,198 5,274
29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 29. ZEAEE

The Group did not have any material contingent liability
at 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

R2023F12A318  AEBEUEEREANSEE
& (20224 : &) o
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES

In addition to those transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the Group entered into the following significant
transactions in the ordinary course of business with

30.

BT R 5 RAERR

BFRAGEMBHREIEMILENERBENRS RE
BN RAFEARNEBR B E XS BES R

B

related parties during the year:

(a) Significant transactions with related (a)

parties

ETT TIBEREARRS -

HEBLIZERRS

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
CEC and companies under FEEFEER
common control of CEC SHHAFZEHZ AT
Sale of products and services HEEmMRK 300,311 181,336
Purchase of products and services PR E o MRS 105,171 168,955
Interest income B WA 9,943 19,159
Rental income e WA 2,401 2,516
Interest expenses FMEXZH 23,209 8,243
Property management fee MEEEE 5,088 3,575
Additions of right-of-use assets NERAEEE 293 1,793
Associate g — N
Purchase of products and services PR E o MR TS 7.924 12,796
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES (Cont’d)

(b) Significant balances with related

300 BEEEXRZR&EE (2

(b) EHEEBEZEXEH

parties
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
2023%F12A31H 20229F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
CEC and companies under FEEFEER
common control of CEC THHABEZEHH 2 AT
Trade receivables g 5 W F1E 39,206 48,314
Other receivables H b fE WK IE
— Accrued interest income and - FEET A B YA K EAth
other receivables & W Fk 18 17,284 23,062
— Prepayments - AR RIE 52 52
Cash and deposits R RFXK 743,191 749,852
Contract liabilities SHAEE 82,687 82,070
Trade payables 2 5 RIE 61,737 27,637
Other payables H h fE A~ I8 59,676 57,718
Loans from a shareholder R E R 430,359 548,546
Entrusted loans from ultimate R RVERR A A
holding company LZEER 66,209 67,169
Associate R — N
Trade payables 2 5N RIE 662 3,675
Other payables H h f& ~f ;I8 1,102 1,192

Other than the cash and deposits and the borrowings
which are interest bearing, the above balances with
related parties were unsecured, interest-free and
settled according to the relevant contract terms. The
borrowings from related parties are unsecured and with
an interest rate of 3.9% (2022: 4.1%) per annum.

(c) Key management compensation

BRI REARMEE SN SN - Ll B & &
AEER SEUVRBERABENERIERESE - @
G HEERERERIEFEFE39% (20224F :
41%)ET 8 °

() FEEEBAEM=

Year ended 31 December

BE12A318LEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4 - 285 & E¥4& T 7,523 6,950
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRET S 280 612
7,803 7,562
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31. INFORMATION ABOUT STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

31. ABALQAUBMRRR2ESR

COMPANY
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
2023128318 2022%F12H31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ik FHT FHTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB REE 113 262
Right-of-use assets FREEE 2,294 3,177
Investments in subsidiaries KRB A RIKE 32 937,496 951,087
939,903 954,526
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables 8 5 & E Al W ERIA 183,833 7,096
Restricted cash SRR EIIR & = 468
Time deposits FHITE 3K 22,070 4,478
Cash and cash equivalents BehIReEEY 72,264 113,699
278,167 125,741
Total assets EERE 1,218,070 1,080,267
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES kAR
Equity s
Share capital and premium IR K B 22 225,454 225,454
Reserves 1ok 1 (a) 123,360 297,017
Retained earnings REB & F (@) 143,490 2,751
492,304 525,227
Liabilities =K
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEA®E 1,117 1,550
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N Al A IR 6,158 3,094
Bank and other borrowings SRITREMER 717,265 548,546
Lease liabilities HEBRE 1,172 1,791
Income tax payable J& 5 FT 45 ¢ 3K IE 54 64
724,649 553,495
Total liabilities EE#E 725,766 555,045
Total equity and liabilities HEREEAE 1,218,070 1,080,267

The statement of financial position of the Company
was approved by the Board on 28 March 2024 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Xu Haidong 8%

Director %
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31. INFORMATION ABOUT STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (Cont’d)

e MWK
For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023F 12 A31H L FE
31. EEZF'AEEJ?%%?R%ZEBH

(a) Reserves and retained earnings/
(accumulated losses)

(a) RERREER(RFEE)

Retained

earnings/

(accumulated

Translation Contributed losses)

reserve surplus  RERR

fE W R EfAEs (RiE#R)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHTT FHTT FETT

At 1 January 2022 7202251818 (49,631) 442,936 (10,725)
Total comprehensive income 2HEM AR (57,720) = 13,476
Payment of dividend A A B = (38,568) =
At 31 December 2022 72022%12H31H (107,351) 404,368 2,751
At 1 January 2023 M2023FE1H1H (107,351) 404,368 2,751
Total comprehensive income 2HK =R (11,267) = 140,739
Payment of dividend A A% B = (162,390) -
At 31 December 2023 #2023%12H31H (118,618) 241,978 143,490
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the BEBREISIFELNGE  ARAIZEHARKRT

contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to
shareholders in certain circumstances as specified in

Section 54 thereof.

R % R BE B SAMERT
% o

FIRZETHERT DK T
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32. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 32. RMIBARIRKRE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
2023%F12831H 20229F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHExT FHTT
Investments — unlisted equity interests % & —JF i ik 4E 937,496 951,087
Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December FEKN B R A R2023F %2022F 128318 2 5
2023 and 2022 are as follows: B

Interest held

iy §+
2023 2022
Place of establishment Principal place of 20235 20225
Name and type of legal entity operation and activities Paid-in capital ~ Directly Indirectly  Directly  Indirectly
£8 RUSHRZEZERER TREERURER BWEX ER B & EE k3
Huada Electronics  PRC, limited liability company ~ Mainland China, design and RMB446,800,000 100% - 100% -
ERET HE - EREEAT sale of integrated circuit A K %446,800,0007
chips
REIR - ERERTRH 2
Rt RIHE
Huahong PRC, limited liability company ~ Mainland China, design and RMB158,471,000 - 95.64% - 95.64%
e e BEREAAR sale of integrated circuit ~ AR¥158,471,0007
chips
mERM - RREELR 2
Rt REE
The Board is of the opinion that the non-controlling EEERR EUZHEREREAEEMNS B
interests of Huahong is immaterial to the Group and TEE RUEBFREZM 2 PEEER -
thus the financial information of Huahong is not
disclosed.
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33. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2023
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s

services as a director, whether of the Company or its
subsidiaries, are as follows:

33.

()

ARBESHHE

HZ2023F12A8318 L E

EREE (BRAQRNENE AR REHRL M
ExfamlnMemT -

Retirement
benefit
Salary and costs  Discretionary

Name of director Fee allowances RIKER bonus Total
R e He R B Mg Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TEr TEr
Xu Haidong FER - - - - -
Chang Feng oy - 717 220 5,028 5,965
Luo Wenjing BYE - - _ _ _
Liu Jinmei 2|1 - - - - -
Chan Kay Cheung B S 200 - - - 200
Qiu Hongsheng ipge 200 - - - 200
Chow Chan Lum BEM 200 - - - 200
600 717 220 5,028 6,565

{n Discretionary bonus for the year 2021 and 2022 received in 2023.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. None of the directors had waived any
emoluments during the year.

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to which the Group was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

M MR2023F WELAI2021F [E 2022 F EBIFIEAL ©

RAFER  AEEYEAE SN ER N
BEAKERMBARER 2 BRI SERBET M

B -RAEFEANBEETRETMAME -

ARBIZEFWERNAEERT LY N FHEHRK
AEREREMERNDATRZERRS - Lk

B BEERIFEBEEEAES -

FEEFEARNKERDE 2023FFH
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33. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS OF 33. AQTEENME (£)
THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

(ii)  For the year ended 31 December 2022 (ii) & ZE2022F12A31BLLFEE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s ERES (BRARFXANBEAR) RERBE M
services as a director, whether of the Company or its BN ERHME0AT :

subsidiaries, are as follows:

Retirement
benefit
Salary and costs Discretionary
Name of director Fee allowances RIKER bonus Total
EEfY ik ey A WETEA CEHl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR TAT AT AT
Xu Haidong FER - - T - o
Chang Feng S - 698 214 2,546 3,458
Luo Wenjing® BXE® = = ol _ A
Liu Jinmei 81 - - - - -
Chan Kay Cheung B S 200 - - - 200
Qiu Hongsheng B kA 200 - - - 200
Chow Chan Lum FEM 200 = = = 200
Liu Hongzhou® 241 ife - 625 340 1,3269 2,291
600 1,323 554 3,872 6,349
o Discretionary bonus for the year 2020 and 2021 received in 2022. o 720225 WEXHI20205F [ K 2021 5 EWIBIEAL ©
@ Appointed in November 2022. @ MR2022FE 1M A ERE -
® Retired in November 2022. @ M2022F 11 AR -
@ Discretionary bonus for the year 2021 received in 2022. @ 72022 F IRER 592021 6 [E RIIEFEAL ©
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023%F 12 A31H L FE

34.

BERHE

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
2023%F12831H 20229 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT THETT
Cash and cash equivalents RehB2FEEYD 1,107,515 1,172,748
Time deposits EHITFE 1,390,391 821,700
Restricted cash ZRRHIIR & 1 33,859
Borrowings repayable —FREEEBE
within one year (496,568) (615,715)
Lease liabilities HEAE (12,244) (35,563)
Net cash & F5E 1,989,095 1,377,029
Cash, time deposits and Be THEAK
restricted cash PR 38 & 2,497,907 2,028,307
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BRRE BT X (496,568) (615,715)
Lease liabilities HEAE (12,244) (35,563)
Net cash R & F5E 1,989,095 1,377,029
Liabilities
from
financing
activities -
Other assets Ballopngs
sfiEE repayable
within
one year
REEHH
Time  Restricted G- Lease
Cash deposits cash —E®  liabilities Total
e EEEX ERHRE  HERE  HERE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL T THIL THL THIL THT
Year ended 8 22022412R31R
31 December 2022 LEE
Opening net cash/(debt) ENRe/ (BH)F8 517,932 721,624 1404 (672,701) (58,870) 509,389
Cash flows REME 722,170 167,655 33,877 - 25,101 948,803
Exchange differences EHES (67,354) (67,579) (1,422) 56,986 4,265 (75,104)
Other movements Hips = = - = (6,059) (6,059)
Closing net cash/(debt) EXRe/ (EH)FH 1,172,748 821,700 33859  (615,715) (35,563) 1,377,029
Year ended B Z2023%12R31R
31 December 2023 LEE
Opening net cash/(debt) FNRe/ (B FHE 1,172,748 821,700 33,859  (615,715) (35,563) 1,377,029
Cash flows AEME (44,453) 584,328 (33,598) (111,089) 23,340 418,528
Exchange differences ERER (20,780) (15,637) (260) 230,236 356 193,915
Other movements Hip2g) - - - - (377) (377)
Closing net cash/(debt) xR/ (B%)FHE 1,107,515 1,390,391 1 (496,568) (12,244) 1,989,095
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Financial Summary

p? M TAY
MEERFHE
RESULTS ¥E
Year ended 31 December
BZ12831BLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023& 20225 20214 20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FEL TEL FHET AT
Revenue 3,019,120 2,483,114 1,681,654 1,324,556 1,695,486
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable FEBRAARERFEELZ
to owners of the Company AEERF/ (BB) 686,431 531,431 125,444 (1,013,263) 155,159
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
31 December
12A31H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

2023F 20225 20215 2020% 20195

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TAT THRT TEL TET

Total assets BEME 4,326,786 4,056,750 2,840,990 2,562,239 4,905,875
Total liabilities BREAE (2,180,565) (2,404,067) (1,566,993) (1,449,869) (2,849,109)
2,146,221 1,652,683 1,273,997 1,112,370 2,056,766
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